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REFRATE &R UH T | Ith RERR 2lad hidad U0 R TLGUaH Gd1aF eael A7 & 97 7
TTSPT ATEATSTE FISHTSIHT F&TH TRTHT FaT |

AIART AU qFoy gred /Kare

TG FEAIF] B1Ed, T Aled] FISHTST (TG 09 ST 43 T 9% (IR ¥ 30 JFaR R033) AT AT URTAA
AT AATSH (South Asian Travel Awards (SATA)) aTE HATATNTT S5 ATST TRTIA AT HATSH R0IR AT
FIETOT TTATRT FereaT Yiaftsd amar a9t anfaer A W& “Leading Luxury Hotel/Resort” YIRS
GHEATHT FUH B | G99 TRTIA a9 JaTedd I+ R09% AT 3fd (&0 Tfaamel Iokse T a9n arfae
SANERATE AT WEHRA TFAINT T4 ATTCHE, | ST TR M9 HaTSd 03 (South Asian Travel
Awards (SATA) 2022) T S5 FTHI Aeq sl IR [qerde gerr wefrar srairsran wfewer faar |

FFCRIE, 8T ¥ (e d IRGH T T STAAIHT_HIR

FITE 9% HETHIAT ATEITH GHATATS A=A T [q9dHT TqEe Th TRl (AHSIIA) T AR
ATATNTHTAT ST Fiqarege qded qo7 Afaed el dA=ited AN 3A1 NR1ae ATTHT HRI qded &T7H
AYATT ATATAT AARTTEE B2 ATTHT T | FHA (A=A T GIIhT TAFFAT T T TAEHT TTeTes
HT GA9T ¥ IR Ficereders @bl anrs Teded IUead! [ude Taahesdh] Taaehd TrqedasHdl a1 I+
ATCHTIYATE gig AT TLEATT A=A T T &l G 0% ATAH! Tlegecd] AlEATETH] HFH FIHT THSAAT
IR T qAGcATh] ATEIT qRATETT AUHT 2l |

ok e fq99 9hed "WST (UNWTO) aTe JHIRTd FRTiaefid gdieq akged gfqaede warifted qded
8T S[ATS 0% AT T fqg Afgiget Tae™ TRIREH! T@ITH TR G T T ATIAT qI2A
FAT IATAT &TAH ATANTHA HETHNT Taehl (¥afd TRET qaAdcHs A &l G 03 B TIH O HigwTeh!
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HAGTHT ST L% o ATHglg WE THTTH QAR FIIH TATHS S@ITH G | TF 09 F1 AT Tt
TAATCHE AAIT T G R0 T STHALT G TS TFAHT AATTHT ARSI T ATATTHA /U A
T ASHT (+993%) IREUHRT G | A A=RINGT qda &1 Ul ROy qHwcdd qaRd AaRined
T ¥ ATATH AT GATheaehl ATHET TAT TdHh A59d ARTATS Fiatarrad Taeg | [Feroa: Il Araredr
TEFT HAFEEHT ATNT T, S[eTSehl AT TSHFIAT TAHPT THT gl T Tdtaty Juterd e |
TAaE ATATTHAD] TGaT TQITHT A=ARITT TIHT [q9aehT Helohgwel ATATHT ANTTHT Fqavd Gehell qTa e Tehl
AT EATUHT AGTATS ITH TS ATATHT AT TGS HEea U TRTETH TATUH! 31w, |

FrARIMET TFed ATANTHA T R0 Bl S T TATs H{GATH] AT STFAT AT R0 FAES W0 A1 AT rE
T fad, S TT AR Ger g5 Aol AqIIR ANHA HRATHl JATH] arear 8l | A Aigdsed g1
R03R FI Gfedl AT Aledrd AT TRUHT FA TIF AANHAS! ¥¥ qiqerd qfamiaed Teg | JR9 2
HeT Tael STERl ¥ TTs I R0 AT HAM: 9¥% T 9% ATANTHHST AT ITHT 098, I TAATHT FoIoIwaT
fdT THETAT QAR ATAT | TRTHT (+9%0%) o T R0 &l Gfgel AT AfEATh! FATdTHT AT A1 IO =Tel
ARINGT THEHEHH] ATANTHA AT, ST HT TAHAT (+359%) T R0 FI AT MG TATSTFHAT TITH
AT ATE TTHT TAAT T&T =R IO TGF i3 TUH Sawg | THRHT (+903%) T ARRHT (+999%) o
qf &9 039 F1 JEFMT G R0 THa4 IRg S[ATSTFHAT  TASHAAT IRl alg T@ISS TF I09% H
TAATHT FHI: §4% T K0% BT ATWIG TE@TTHS, | TRIAT T FAT (+954%) AT 0% &I afedr a1 AfeArar
FeaR AT F&T TUCH ATARTHA 9T, TAM TRIAT T Y= HETANRIT S9ewdT 9ded a9 R09%, &I qaAATH
S%% o HdHl |

TEYHAT, BR GFRIHF TEATIATEE SMGUH TUATI THAHT SGH T ATRA T faeaeardy ==
HITELITR! ATATEARV ARG TAAP] -G AT ARIHE TEIHT SGH T FIAH TEH G |
AT, Thdl TGl THY AATAR ATEedT AT TTHT JA& THE T JR@Uardid Sch Jgeh!
FRUT T 5 ITATH HeA HAT ghl TRl Ted T THT ARG TGMUX A=ARITT AT S@ATEEAT
T S [ATe ARINET AU TFAEE Aqeg T I8hl AT G TqA ASTAAT ANdF TEIATT
FFATST8, ¥ STH®! IRUTH @39 9ded &7 Iod Hed TS T @3 |

FIMAE R HETHNIRT FHATS! Taal T9E T TGET @Rl TATAFIAT FTAFHHAEES &l TG qeiedd
fafafaesar Tfaar qar g ST JUETHT Thed IHEE quRE ®H fqg faar Heeaw fawaria
EISIT SAUEATHT AT IT SEEHATE ATATHT FTTR FTqavdess Tarse a9 Jedmied T, T T Maraares
W ATIF g URbaAT TRUHN & | TRETAT I9TEeel g R0 I a1 JHNGE AAHT Tadhesels
FITHE 4R I GALT T FRASTA] T ATTTHATH THA IT IJIRIHIU ATATTHT S |

AT FHAV(HT AT Fool@d NI ATIAHT AT aiedep afafreear Ggdraneor aieaferd &3 Tut 3, o
TaT FAATEART ALTAAT TR Grataread g TP, TIITA FHiFEd R, T Heew fawir dWaaam fag e
FIEITS AITA ARG Teehl FehlSd | GIel HIETHT 9 FHI AT3T JNTEE TATTH | T R0%3
1 AT HiGATTFHH TATHA AAAD] ATHEITH §0 FIAAT Tl qel AlAdewd HIFe 2 @GPl 35 Sre
AEARET G |

3= AGras! IRGAFes TR AMdE a6 098 /00 HT HHATAT Thl AITALT AMIF T 099/ 95
AT qAecAT O AR TE[ AMAE T 095 /9 H GRTAT AT HigAewdl AldeH Ararargase
qAECATTT TS (MRl el  T@IUe |

AYF FT 2095 /9%, I dleall o WieATH a1 & Mdrardes d1dd ATTaige! qeT aR=rded TUH! JATa
TRUH B | AITEATH TR el Teomseed 9i% ¥ g3 AR, aRded araad, ¥ faxde a1 gaw T«
FEAAIEE Jad T G3E WA TI7 FARTHE [Geah IH@ el dobd JaE TWRed S | HAag 9%
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ATEAF @I AT 2T faeaqr T R SIRT 78T awated faxi T Hifges Treameser Arhaeed
& fafafaesars dreamed ARwedr T | T ¥ Ted FFEedl afdtaiaes 9fd qRitgd TUChEsd]
HANTHAHT Flg TURT TG &HT Jeoied AR TUHN B, TAM fqeiies qvh a1 FeTHr Tt feafqer qermr
e warel T B

ATYH qT 095 /0% AT TUTART HITHES UTSH AATAAT ATIEF FARPT TATATAEE ST G STHBT T T
wfeer v faek e Teehr ot | Tty g ggen faeaemdt giase snfde gamae faemm afaeaeefe
AITAATE FAHATT dh FCTRed] G A T&T AATAH] AT [HR AIqaTs T8 T Tl G
TATTHT HITEHIA dfetesl T faaell #qg1 atsaiq frer afazedl s@war g | Jureedr ardrd Gl
fepTaeeer FifTg qwerdl ST faearrens difges Aifdere Fwaen arfefeur faaeft qgr afs=faer awaom
TS AITAHT AT AT TATTEEATE THATIT T 3¢ Yebed <k T Bl | THIHT Jed A T HraH
T AT AT T R06R, /50 HT AT 99 Hifgeh FSTE T (TG0 aofa ARl ATaTHAT T, |
JITATAel THICHT =T AT aWH FTAFFITET JIR I Hiasaehl greero

=T ATF T J09R /50 P J06R AYAT ¥ T TP ATITHT T aleadl T ATGH R el ATETH!
AT R FRIE 3% AG 50 TIRH TAATHT FA AT Y0 FE US AT 30 B9 ATREI TWH G | T
ATTIF TR 09 AT Q¥ TEAHT H31 TRIT (Room Occupancy) O FATT el @ T T AR
TATET FATTeT 0 FTeTa TEehT FAaT | ETeaTehl uiq #iar drad HeA3Y (Average Room Rate (ARR) ) ¥ 9T
9fd HIST ATFTI (Revenue Per Available Room (RevPAR) FHI: & 529% T % 4,33 WEH 3 EEIRIG
ATTYeh T TIel ATATHT B &, Y, 39 T ,0%3 Tgeh! {97 |

TE] TAT AT FqR qum T

FFIATC ETdeTehl ICATEH, AT TAT FATEweh! MT=dR e qoT TR e AT STeehIee IO aHieTe
EICTHT UTedgd AT dreATessdl Afaemeefi sfa a1 aq9d % dfqd 98 qiaen fawar T Ieed
HTET fAta= TR el aRASTHES 9% T G |

BTl ANTHA el (A9 RISl gl qREreHrel ufedl SRl HrH AlhUd
D | I TR AT qIRATSTATRT AT =0T h1H {8 IReT T80 AWy ofde a9 srnfe § fawor
F FHI TRAG, | ETceAB] ANTHA HeT (AN TIRIATTH! T T ATH AT AT aR ¥ 7 T afex
F Alfh HALAT Fleqd! TEd IR THT THEET T AT T AT WWhE | ANTHA He (AST) T
QAT Tfeel RO AviTd AGh! T AN TIAT qleel qaqrd &g (o9 Ivaz) ¥ giafq Jo& #e
(@TE &) TEpT (AT STHATS AT T TR T FAT GATRET “HTAT” FHT PHETHT BAT-AR0T TRTHT & | THT
HIAAT TAT FETFT AT Fooll T Fdeals 71 T RSk 9T IR T 0T ATEIHbaredl 1 qURETH T
TRIf=a e g |

ETde (S 32 55 T ]RQ P TR TATHIT ¥ A=A AT TaSRTIe qga 99 1 T=id
TATHEOT IRATTAT FFeAT (AT 1 fAed? SRT © % AT 19T i AUHT ) | Breaaeel a ey feararg
TR TATHRUT q¥aed] IRATSTATRT AT (AT 19 TRhidee TRUH 8 T J9aR Ith Hawddl g9
afafsr Froreedrg TG TATE9 T THEH TAT IATSH ATl W T |

s o4

THET I FFET SSIANG AT STRIIEEATS JITETd= ¥ ST A ST maNg dararg redl
T ATSTAT FATTRIG, | ATar il ait Sfed feg av wirvears faeafua nifeas ¥ Gl 8Har R arear

AT TS FTEITIT TTRAS, TS Blded TATATHAT IOl @I G Halcilebl AT o FeasTAelTs
THT ATET TH FEdRT [ FUET TR |
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gfsr faer fafadieo

ey afereriady fatwes

FEIAI FISHATIST FTHHT ATMET FFIATR] TSHIH TAT FVE A=RTT AT BTdees FoaTad T ATTATHE
I (O T AAR FFIE qU: T Tedl HFIAT UF, R0%3 AwiTd SedTad diedl gfedarate
fafwes ATHr qUid: T@Tfued FeTed FEIET GEATIAT T STh FEIHIRT AT UNSTHT AT Y FRIE A
TRITHH B, | TFHT AR, FHIATT TeTdh HAT, Aledl efeaarfad! fafidears & 9 FR€ % @@ ¥0
TR EAT 99 AT YTHT AT 6T STTH IfAaeTeRT AT SRt TR G |

T FFAIH! “Fiedl” Fre qAT dSHTE (AR T FF MR RN WH B | FFIATR qIvg qaT dSHTh
AT T R0 HT A TEHHT TTAHT TN ¥ FATITHT FHT: “Wedl TR’ T “Fiedl awevs kada”
ATEHT el AT Blades ATALATATHT ATITSA |

Gied! aeave RRErd faaem

AedT aeavg TETE e quTerel amTHeT W31 vaiTd 9RAUY ferdaep! iaeT=THT ITehfder efeareil s
A= FATT TF FiadT TFI ARTHIAT (THTe]) REE Bl SATaEIITHT AT, | I<h NHIEHT a9 Al
gferam v faftte grere (feaad faean) ¥ g8 91 Sfaeiad faear dfed dfadar a99= & 4R aaT
qEAT FIBET TEH Bl | TEATEEH @A ¥ AN ATIeATIT Javdehl AT g5 (¥eiea T =% qlerem
T d5% HEE®E Hied, Nadd dAGHbe] HARSAA, GREMTe T AR [q5mHaT qeafed ad Jehe
FAIFITEEH ATALARAT TR TR | ATIESR (@THT I T qU7 Fiqem R Tl Fladre ARTHIAT T
A=Yl fersmaer AT RETE qiqe! Tiedesed! amT AHIT aoie |

FEIEE ATAF] JSHIF TOTSTATT TERIATH ARAT A=A FHFIATH U TTHCAHT bl Tiedl afeqarfeards
fatreg®r al arre, 8 ATH ¥ dSHIH A KAl HIITIT T FodATad A |

Ih Bdd TG FFAMR] U WHTH] Tehl Ficdl aieqariddl fafqagedl ATHAT Tal HTIH Wkl A T
TSHTE TART T FFIHEE S TRUHT JSHTF FoATTaqs GEHIAT HaIT Arqid BHIHIH qT7s, 8 ATH
T 3SHE WANT TR Bldd AT qoT a1 g |

Giedl TS, TEE

el d¥EvE T, TITAR] TGl 7. § Bl TEE<H bl STehl JAT &bl qiaal & T TH! aldd &l, Al
qTEATE®el AT ARTHITAT T J&TH Tl AT ATHUF (Soed T THHNAT AUAEF qAEEs H1 AT

JAEHSAT Fehl3S |

I<h ETCAHT oY TS UTEAT HISEE, UST HeTd Tl Gooll TE (XIwE, TIT [ARTadr Ieh ¥aeea, TIal
TR &g, TSl aTAA &, T T Y000 Fhedl TIal AT THARIE WIAHN &, Tgel fafeiT e, 2
T3l T TEH T |

T T ISHT% FANTH! AT JEiedd HETee dr 8 qUbT JSHTE SATTATT TERIATAT T AT

AT TEN ITh 17, &€ AW T U YART T8 HFRITIH T J=aTae g1 |
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Hieer Rrafrw dreeq qur Radq w. fa.

FEHTR] WETTE  FAT, Aledl eferartafe fafads amha o @@l aa@ifas #ike  IXdTIs
AR A TH TEHHHT Tl FIh AHIH] HHAT Tiedl Rrafws giee qar ey o fa. dearer
TR AATERT>S T GRERTAT gl [THTO q9T FoTed el AN AT TR G |

Aredl feraferd g uue REedd ar.ia o dredl gfeaeriads fafadser AT aai WU Jve, SATRe 91
AT TSHTE A=A ATHAT T BIARE FoalTad g | Aled! afeqerferds fafaee a9 wrarer quf w@nfae
HUH FETF HHIAN &l | T3 HFIAR] (GoAT TS TS T (ATSHT) TFRIATH SFaTT AR d dledl
aedrg TR T Aiedl avre KA1 Wl B |

Aled! Rrafehd Blded 91 R grewe fafqdSH! T, ATa=draT 9T FATATAT Tl TITAh] qrear
YRR AT AAEId A€ (LEED) THINIRT 91 aX I{F 2dd “Hied! & MfHaR” JurenT=,
QUIFTHT HATATHT Tedhl G |

fewTe graxAvEe UraR #9 grewe fafwes

FFIA [EHTA ST qTaR FY HFHA] GeHe [araeg (EHTe SreaweTd TaR %Y9) HIhd WIeaHhefl qray
FET greHe fafide (|idwrell 9@y wFn) /7 A Wb |

FFIATR fEHTe Frazee qraR HURA 91, (fedTe grazmerae arar &) &1 a7 ISIAT K.%9% & 9
T TEHS | [EHT Trexae™ed qray warerds dresnfl aear wwr yrfea (dieend 9@y v a1
AT B, ST TTHEHT ATl ISR SeATadd ATATSTAT (el AIdehiefl STAtaed ATATSTAT) F=ATe
AU G | Aol WIEHIT TATTLT ATATSTATA AR TRIT ATHR, AMGeA! HIdbIel TAladd ATATSATA
YTeR{cTeF WebTTehT FIRT STATAZA [EAT AT &ffcebl qAMHTT q¥qe ety fedwar j09% ¥fg wfted frgwm
FTEAIIE AT AT I TS HEE o TRREH! @ | AP FAfawd AT 3095 9Tt
AR 39 T (QUTATS 039 ) THT AT FTRT ATNT FeT FTemeor 9797 %, 9.4 AT faaor qear faar
SEATE T HFIATS AT ATfded FHT 3. QR 33,499~ TG ATHIT YT TehT 3 |

FIIAH STAHTIAT FX T THE TCAEE

FITE-9%, HETHRIH! AATTHT TrTawalh! AL I ATARTHA Fiqarvad Tedhlel Taede Marardes q07 &qHT
T AUHT FRIT A(IE T 09% /R0 ) AT 30 IEAT TATAFT AT el T -R.¥ Glqeraet Mide g
947 |

FITTS-92 TTTHT AT TIHT FART ¥ FGHET T @l Pl ATTHT FHH: JARIT ATIE 5 3009, 95
AT IR 9E ATMIH a0 3095 /9, AT A1 F1gax .5 Taeradl [ A TRUH g | 499 Sepepr 1l
faepra sage TFERT T AdEER R0IR AT YHIRTT Ffqasd AR START T AR &AT Taefl ATl
Fiear atg wAr S ATUF IRF! HeA FRE (947 |

forshm TFd 009 A (AT U9) IG AIERE FIHT ARG TR AT GAT TTDT TR
Qe JUNTS TIATHRTS Mg o 8¢ Hebe T AGUGEed] AT e ATTHN F | {98, 3003 J9me 93 T
TUHT HeTqh, fafd 06 oSt & T @ 093 AT ATH IR FEIERT AAF  ATHEET T 098 AT 99
afg Ridquar FITE-92 AETHRI TaTed 90T IJUNTArs TR &qqT gaifad TRITH 3 |

ATeAel YTehicieh A<, HETT Ufderiash, Jekide qur diiie TreEl, o JTH=oE T, HARH §97,
FETeT fHeMar AHdes T g [aiaeadrel Il @ | qu7e faeadr aqe wieiae dved T fatag
AT FRAATEE TUHT AIEh{Th ETH] FTHT ATHUF TLEe Hed T &l | TEAT AAATT TTehieeh Arvad
¥ fafagarqul FRiiee TR=T e FH HeHHT g, TAYN ATed Tadhesals AT T Sl e
e FareT A TeIie Wl HawdT G | El AT TAIHhEsels ATHNT T AUTABT THaH FUNTHI
faspra 9 WEs ATATATT YU,  QUIRUHT IgAA G, THE HAl, TACHT GAAEEHT el TEd,
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TAYAIATHE TUET TANIFIT T JaRgATCHE (qtataes dA9Ars T IJANATs 99 a1 TATST ATaeTF
R |

FFIAIRT SNTE TAT SATNRE AT AT H FEawe

TUTEAT AMIF qUFT ATHHT FFIRR] FHACEIH] G TG GHER, WETTI ¥ I el Fey
ST TRISTE | T a9 9fF 2 TFeaTId ¥ FHARES g9 ThATe Jcw QIeTaqul arqrazordT arHfes
TIHT EEART ATATT TTEATEeATs JIAe ATH-TTHl FART 5 FTIIETATH 1T Ieobse T TURAT Fal
Y& T qAT EaeAdg IS TPl AT TATH 313 TATSH ATSRT AT YTl T FIAHT AN Thad Ts
RER FEhrd T AT ATET FA GFIET AT |

Forerer AR Aol TRARET TFI0 FHANIEEH Soaedl ATaATAE FERAAAT T(qhl fqagan,
AN T AILITIA SATETRT TEfbed] TEhrd Ud THITE! AT, FHATH, FET T Ha¥ e Jelesd a9
FFIATRT T ¥ I FR=R 99 FedT, HEEAl, Thid GedRT, 0T T A9d9d GaHTadl daredtae
T AT ATAANIE FTIGETEH, (b T JaTep! JeebradT el HRTHT ATga Sfaeredt e
FATCHESH FEATHT AT ATHAT T 99 9 AT § THATE qHA] AT THAT Hgd TS, T 2l
HEALATIAH] 99 FEART [ FF(A] Gk ¥ [q9a&d g Flbrg |

ATedT ETEAhl ATRAT ATGTT TTEATES, ATH ATA[Thdles, JATIGTTFES, dhes I d70 FLATEs, T
ToTEe, (T ShaRes T WRIHITETAES, 9 TARIEs ¥ TIRATSes, GXHRI Hehrasdl Afudries T
framae fAepresaT srcav T, GHYR ¥ WETEu Aadiisd qrae Eh G |

FEAT AR ATIATITG AT DT Ihes TRAT aTqe T (q1aT)’ 1 efeaaiferdl Ig&r a1 | H¥ar
qUTA AT AT HeTHHeh! UAMGUE e &1 A9 8ied UNiguds % 9T (B19), 99T =R (%
TR AR FFAT ThSTeh I I el g |

FHAR GFaY, STTCATIT GHE, AT F{AS-9% HETHTY FehIT A AR

FEIAS FTAGHETHT EH IR Y T Igead AT g5 Praarsl ea9e J=irhar T Tl
FTITAEHT ATNT TedTed T FHART 3 aedde o= fratad saar i a=ithar So@ee (ITgTed i)
AT e ATTHT T | BEIAA FHARIEEATS BIACEATHT AT (AT FRTET0T YaT TS ATTHT T | Bldetel
FHANEEATS A FAhdT AIATs HAAFIET T Tl qRATCHE IIT AIATS 9T IIET T @y
Jrarhdl AT G¥eredl ANIAGT Teedl qeH q97 GHtead eaare el qRel ¥ @ gea=dl ATIIUees
qIAAT T Fearedl [T =R gRTerer 9am T e | FRIET WE AT YA T q9r T STAT BTH
T AT A9 AT G AIIGUSEE ATITCATEd! qolTehalel 9T Il AU [q9aar afd
giafr=ra 79 8w |

FETHIH] FHEARIEED] HATEAT, FRAGFITETH] ATATER0 FAT HFAHT GITbl AN q97 TEdRNT GHIT Fod
I FIETH WH AU RG] HETTHTEeEAls SAHR] RIS AT3al Faasd qHfqars A
TRe®l qafd T B | fauw T gfaswa afRfeafaar e g FHREE g TE g0 qHET ¥
TEATTHT AT Foor AEAT FAT JT ML |

FFIATRT FIAFRT AL AT TEIU] IRATHE TAT GaaTes FFI-TArg FNTaH e 43 d9fger 2030 3@
3 fedFer 3030 FF 3. ¥,000 /= Ufd AigAT T Q AT 03] 3@ 39 HIE Q033 I+ AT . 10,000/ =
giq AfEAT aTeed AT FF 9T ARATHE JoAT Ffaaee faq 9o |
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Y53t aThis gRTaes jous/owy Sozltee Hotel Limifed

FATAd GATT I FoaATdA® AATTHT IREA:
FoATAE QIATTeR AT
FEAIH GoATTh GTAITH] AT AT AT ek | BT HFIATHT Teb Higelr dee died A8 ST
JoaTelh AIEE FAH EATUH! B, | FAPR] AHL deh qodATeleh GHIATH q70 TIIEE TR BB
JUHTA FFIAIETE oANAT EISAPT dHb FoaTed T SATTATEF TAraides T 9T f@¥gaT | goared
afafaar wiew, =R qar e, famn, Sfee qor e & g9 sEm @A fafee gesataare
ATITAH fafaer aresan fatersrar ¥ fasrar afad T us 99 9aeaes A9 s § |
ToeATAE ATATT HFIAID! T [GeTAReT T, HET AAANAF ASTAEEH SAle qdT e T, BldeAh!
Y FRATFAGART HETacehbe T Ed oot qearvdl IUHIIqe BTaareTl Tihd T, ETdasl JHTTE
Jor aTftfer GRS e (MR T, JAgE Fraasa- aue, e qTide [Faoess feraded
T, TIT E1ed FTLATIT FHEATS MR TAATCHE ANGL TR HFIATeh] qed q9T I U I faemiaast
ﬁ c\r ﬁ C ~ C l

F=ATA® FHIAA TATAR] HFIAT UA, JATAd FAA, MaRrres, FHame Hegare s HeeE, fadds

THEAT U9 q91 49, |9 G e wd, FFEIAE Jaeddd ¥ g, 99T 9wl dw ) i
gafead HEA adr o MeiTeessr akdr 3 @1 AhRAr dfaeRer TN T 16, |
FooT® GIATTHT ATH qRaaw

Tver srafuwr, Uftedt eurerd GHIAERT FTAHET FEHER! (T 095 AR g TA GE TR ¥ 9T
M ATIROT AT AT AUEA o= Ul f9ar | fafd R09s w@faw 6 T (¥ fedwr 3039) HieErR
T AUHT BRI YO ATh AIIRT AHETE HFIATH] G GIHITH] FaT AAAAT ¥ Gaardma
SERYATETE (HaT={ JUII=TT ANMHT =R THH FHARAR] AT 7 THINTHET ToATARes Tadhl qoaTedd
gfgfaer o iewer foar |

Aredl graxarest ur.fa 1 gfafafuca 79 7Aa 95 s gTvus asarases

9. | =7 faerer Ferer fase TATA® TAT FREAFRI AT
R. | AT ST ST AEHT 98 SERIEED
3 | 1 A W A RERIEED
¥, | AT IS FNT S LERIEED
AT ATAEAT (AR, HBISHTSIT Taffaed T AAIT 95 R g U Toards
BRER G | =T
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B.l(. AGRAWAL & CO. Saraswati Vatika

iti Marg,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS é?i-’él':-’é\\’f\"?:'so. ?IFQ

MEMBER CROWE GLOBAL P.O. Box 3761, Kathmandu, Nepal.
T: +077-1-4581865, 4567694, 4567568

E: bkag@crowe.com.np
W: www.crowe.com/np

Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders of
Soaltee Hotel Limited

Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of M/s Soaltee Hotel Limited (hereinafter referred
to as ‘the Company’) which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16,
2022), and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes &
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statement read together with Notes forming part of the financial statement give the information
required by the provisions of Nepal Companies Act, 2006, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required
and, give a true and fair view in conformity with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), of the state
of affairs of the Company as at Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), its Profit/(Loss) including its Total
Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and the Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statement section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statement under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit, we
consider following as key audit matters:

S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
1 Revenue Recognition
(Refer Note 2.2.16 "Revenue" and Note 3.15 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service (hereinafter | Our audit procedures included the following:
referred to as "Revenue") is recognized at the o Assessed the appropriateness of the

time of delivery of services and it is probable Company's revenue recognition accounting
that the future economic benefits will flow to policies in line with NFRS 15 (Revenue) and
the Cqmpany and that revenue and assoqated testing the accounting of revenue in books of
costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably accounts thereof.

measured and no any performance obligation
is pending with respect to revenue recognized.

responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not have an ownership or partnership interest in B.K. Agrawal & Co.
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S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
Revenue is key driver of the business and | « Evaluated the integrity of the Company's
recorded in complex |IT system and general information and technology control
environment. Likewise, revenue also includes envionment and tested the operating
high number of individual and low value effectiveness of IT application controls over
transaction therefore in respect of services revenue recognition, the detailed process flow
provided there is risk that revenue is recorded of sales, segregation of duties for the process
inappropriately relative to the provision of the followed, automated steps and manually
underlying service. intervened processes.
Therefore, due to significant risk embedded in | ¢«  Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,
revenue we have identified revenue analytical testing with sales information filed
recogniion as a Key Audit Matter for the with tax authorities, testing the timing of its
current period. recognition and accuracy of the amounts

recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

¢ Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services room sales
and assessing them against relevant
supporting documentation/sales contracts to
determine income has been appropriately
recognized.

2 Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
(refer Note 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the Financial Statements)

There are areas where management | We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
judgement impacts the carrying value of | asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
property, plant and equipment and investment | capitalization process, performed tests on costs
property and their respective depreciation or | capitalized, the timeliness of the capitalization of
amortization rates. These include the decision | the assets and the derecognition criteria for assets
to capitalize or expense the costs, the annual | retired from active use. In performing these
asset life review: the timeliness of the | procedures, we reviewed the judgments made by
capitalization of assets and the use of | the management including the nature of underlying
management assumptions and estimates for | costs capitalized, impairment, determination of
the determination or the measurement and | realizable value of the assets retired from the
recognition criteria for assets retired from | active use, the appropriateness of useful life of
active use. Due to the materiality in the context | assets. We have observed that the management
of the balance sheet of the company and the | has regularly reviewed the aforesaid judgements
level of judgment and estimates required, we | and there are no material misstatement of
consider this to be a Key Audit Matter. impairment and capitalization of assets

Other Information:

The directors are responsible for the other information such as "Report of Board of Director's/Chairman’s
Statement" to be presented in the Annual Report and Accounts for FY 2078/79 (2021/22) of the Soaltee
Hotel Limited. Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express any audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated above, any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether,
based on audit work done by us on financial statement, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements:

The company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of these financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material miss;gtemea\

whether due to fraud or error. 7 G RAWL X\
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In preparing the financial statement, the respective management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial information.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of financial statement, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. We are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statement represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be considered to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters.
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We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On the basis of our examination, we would like to further report that:

Kathmandu

We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of such books;

In our opinion, the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity
attached thereto, for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information dealt
with by this report are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the company;

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Company has been conducted satisfactorily; and

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Company necessary for the purposes of the audit,
we have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the
Company have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any
misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the company or committed any accounting fraud
in the company.

)

B.K. Agrawal, FCA
Managing Partner
For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.

Date: 17 October, 2022 (31 Ashwin, 2079) Chartered Accountants

UDIN: 221023CA00018bSRYm
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
FoR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 32 AsHAD 2079 (16 JuLy 2022)
NoTtes To THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of
Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of
Nepal (SEBON) and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office
of the Company and the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal.
Since its incorporation more than 53 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with
five star quality hotel facilities and flight catering kitchen since its commercial operation. SHL has
invested in two subsidiaries namely H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd.
for expanding its hotel business. Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary, it has also
invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.

The Company owns and operates a deluxe luxurious property classified under Five Star category
by the Government of Nepal with business name and brand “The Soaltee Kathmandu” hotel at
Tahachal, Kathmandu Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu, Nepal. The property (hotel) is
owned and operated by the Company. The Soaltee Kathmandu has 285 saleable rooms ranging from
Deluxe, Club to Suites. Further, the Company also owns and operates The Soaltee Gate Gourmet,
an Inflight Catering Division under a Technical Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore
Pte. Limited, Singapore.

The Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of Directors on 17
October 2022 (31 Ashwin 2079) and has recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual

General Meeting.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Basis of Preparation

2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal.

2.1.2. Basis of Measurement

These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the following
material items:

— Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value
— Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.
— Other long term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the obligation.

2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies.
The company makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates
and judgements are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
In the future, actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:

A) UsEFUL LIFE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the

assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including
relative efficiency and operating costs.
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B) IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted
estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated commodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount rates and other
factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could
impact on the carrying value of assets.

c) RecocNITION OF DEFERRED TaAx

Significant the above management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate 21.25% (Previous
Year 21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving
rise to deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will
be recovered.

D) OTHER LONG TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Significant judgement is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part of
unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or termination of
employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption like interest rate, rate
of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors considered may change
depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the control of the company.

E) AsseEssMENT oF COVID-19

The company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources,
profitability, liquidity position, prospect possible alternatives for financing arrangements, supply
chain and demand for its services. The company stands at comfortable liquidity position to meet
its commitments for the year ended 16 July 2022. The company does not foresee any disruption in
materials supplies for the hotel operations.

The company has also assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on the carrying value of property,
plant & equipment, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables, inventories, and other
current assets appearing in the financial statements of the company. In developing the assumptions
and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the company as at the date of approval of these Financial statements has used internal
and external sources of information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying
amounts of these assets.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements and the company will continue to closely monitor any material
changes to future economic conditions.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared and presented in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the
company’s functional currency.

2.2. Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out
below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting estimates. The areas
where significant judgements and estimates have been made in preparing the financial statements and

their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.
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2.2.1. Standalone financial statements

This financial statement is the standalone financial statement of the company. Consolidated financial
statement as per NFRS 10 is prepared separately.

2.2.2 Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the company and its associates are recognized only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the company’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying
amount of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as
other non-financial assets.

2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

1. REcocGnNITION

The company initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

1. CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT
FINANCIAL ASSETS

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the entity’s
business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors determine whether the
financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
(‘FVOCT) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL)).

— At amortized cost: Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments for which the Company has intent and ability to hold till maturity.
They are initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate
method less any impairment losses.

— At fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or
loss if the company manages such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on
its fair value. Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

— At fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets at FVOCI are non-
derivative financial assets that are not classified in any of the above category. Financial assets at
FVOCI are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are measured at fair value, as far as such fair
value is available, and changes therein, which are recognized in other comprehensive income and
presented in the fair value reserve in equity. When an investment is derecognized, gain or loss
accumulated in equity is reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

1. DERECOGNITION
FiNaANcCIAL ASSETS
The Company derecognizes a financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the

financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial assets




gmteg Yot A giaaed R08s/08)

are transferred or in which the Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the risk
and rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the consideration
received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii) any cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is recognized in retained
earnings.

Financial Liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

1Iv. OFFSETTING

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when and only when, the Company has a legal right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

V. AMORTIZED COST MEASUREMENT

The ‘amortized cost’ of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between
initial amount recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

vi. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or
a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted
market values represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and liquid
market. Where quoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other techniques.

vil. IDENTIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF IMPAIRMENT
Financial assets

At each reporting date the Company assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor
— breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor
— observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and amount
the management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and
appropriate estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be received
are provided allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline in
its net worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance
account against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement of
OCI. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of the
discount. If an event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of impairment
loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income statement (OCI in
case of available for sale investment).
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If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the impairing
loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized through
OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Impairment charges are
included in profit or loss except to the extent they reverse gains previously recognized in Other

Comprehensive Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the company entities in a currency other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the “functional currency” is Rs.) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of unsettled
monetary assets and liabilities are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase
price and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future
unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized
within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the Company. Ongoing repair and
maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their
useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress
Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress
(CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of
construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and
depreciation commences.

Salvage Value

Company has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its
original cost.

Depreciation
Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until

they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property, plant and
equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.
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2.2.7

2.2.8

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Management of the company has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years
Other civil structures 20 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years
Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years
Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years
Leasehold Development 3 years

Intangible Assets
Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives.

Investment Property

The Company holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating function.
Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and
other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within provisions.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow in to the company. Ongoing repair and maintenance are expensed as
incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change
in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item
and its fair value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain
is transferred to retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income
from operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount
is booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative than the
straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Salvage Value

Company has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its
original cost.

Depreciation
Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other

items of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic
lives.

Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.
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2.2.9 Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model
for managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are
measured at amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows
and contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Income, at
initial recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive
Income that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are
charged to Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories

Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items
with the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.

Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering
comparable market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of
loan is charged to profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

2.2.13 Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the company are classified as equity only to the extent that they
do not meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The company’s equity shares are
classified as equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits
of the company comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are
provided as per the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee
Union and the Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund (SSF) and the company does not have
any legal or constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to Provident
fund are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan
The Company is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees.
The Company accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with Labor

Law of Nepal and the Company has deposited Employee Gratuity in SSF. The amount presented in
financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.
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Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability
at the present value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial
valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax
Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are
expected to apply in subsequent periods.

Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is
calculated reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act as per management
assumption and bet judgement.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. The Company is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax
rate as per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Additionally, for FY 2078/79, the Finance Act
2079 has declared additional rebate of 50% on tax liability to hotel business affected by COVID-19.
Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the company for current fiscal year is 10.63%% (previous year rate
was 1%).

2.2.16 Revenue

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the
Company and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added
Taxes, Civil Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT)
and Service Charges. Revenue from The Soaltee Gate Gourmet -Flight Catering Division sales is
stated net of Civil Aviation Fee & Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.

Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the
Hotel Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labour Rules as per the previous agreement
between HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.
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Dividend

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income

Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the
amount and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership fees which are
insignificant to the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Ltd, to operate
the Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of The Soaltee Gate Gourmet’ is based on a fixed
percentage of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.

2.2.18 Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys
a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease
on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at The Soaltee Gate
Gourmet. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked as
operating lease expenses, which the Company believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and
infrastructures to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same
amount is booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more representative

than the straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions

The Company applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting
for non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is
more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation,
which can be reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation
exists.
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2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets
for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Company classifies a liability as current when:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

¢ It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
2.2.21 Segment Reporting

The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Company’s
management, which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments. All transactions between business segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis,
with intra-segment revenue and costs being eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining business segment performance.

2.2.22 GOVERNMENT GRANT
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the
grants will be received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Company recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

2.2.23 Operating Cycle

The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets
Amount in Rs.

Particulars | Software | Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2077 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2077 12,902,915 12,902,915
Charge for the year 828,401 828,401
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 13,731,316 13,731,316
Charge for the year 402,242 402,242
Disposal - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,133,558 14,133,558
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2077 2,034,739 2,034,739
At 31.03.2078 1,206,338 1,206,338
At 32.03.2079 804,096 804,096

Note 3.3: Investment Property

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Freehold Land | Building | Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2077 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2077 - 77,719,236 77,719,236
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 - 79,698,359 79,698,359
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 - 81,677,482 81,677,482
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2077 4,707,287 88,427,576 93,134,864
At 31.03.2078 4,707,287 86,448,453 91,155,741
At 32.03.2079 4,707,287 84,469,330 89,176,618
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate effective to the Company
21.25% (Previous Year 21.25%). Deferred tax assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences
giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be

recovered.
Amount in Rs.
. Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2078 to SOPL to OCI 32.03.2079
Fixed Assets (45,629,725) (7,673,697) - (53,303,422)
Gratuity Provision 24,334,467 (8,130,596) - 16,203,871
Provision for Leave 13,592,896 (3,186,261) - 10,406,635
Trade and Other Receivable 8,843,678 1,062,500 - 9,906,178
Total 1,141,316 (17,928,054) - (16,786,738)
. Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2077 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2078
Fixed Assets (36,276,929 (9,352,796) - (45,629,725)
Gratuity Provision 53,629,411 (29,294,944) - 24,334,467
Provision for Leave 25,576,794 (11,983,898) - 13,592,896
Trade and Other Receivable 7,781,178 1,062,500 - 8,843,678
Total 50,710,454 (49,569,138) - 1,141,316
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars | 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
At Fair Value Through OCI 290,689,670 283,895,258
Total 290,689,670 283,895,258
Current
At Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI - -
Total - -
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Term Deposit - -
Total Investment at Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Subsidiaries
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. (99,500 shares of Rs. 100
each, 35,136 shares of Rs. 100 each at Premium of Rs. 98 each) 16,906,928 9,950,000
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (2,500,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 250,000,000 250,000,000
Advance for Investment in Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 12,640,000 12,640,000
Sub-Total 279,546,928 272,590,000
Investment in Associates
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HK$ 1) - 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment - (16,538)
Sub-Total - -
Investment in Other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. (100,000 shares of Rs. 11,142,742 11,305,258
100 each)
Sub-Total 11,142,742 11,305,258
Total Investment through OCI 290,689,670 283,895,258
Proportion of voting rights
H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. 99.63% 73.63%
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100% 100%
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 5.97% 5.97%

During the period, the Company has disposed off the investment of H I Soaltee Management Co. Ltd.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 4,454,681 4,454,681
Deposits 4,338,095 3,714,814
Loans and Advances to Employees 18,921,585 26,088,551
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,228,540 2,015,435
Total 35,994,320 43,324,900
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 28,942,901 36,273,481
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 248,716,457 163,320,827
Less: Allowance for Impairment (39,565,887) (34,565,887)

Trade Receivable-Net

209,150,570

128,754,940

Other Receivable

Loans and Advances to Employees 11,634,470 15,749,658
Loans and Advances to Other 34,177,783 24,600,047
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 18,939,147 1,857,037
VAT Recoverable 1,959,002 32,298,270
Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,281 4,036,281
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,095,683 1,658,448
Total Other Receivable 71,842,366 80,199,741
Total 280,992,936 208,954,681

Additional information on Other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.
Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of
90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade Receivable included in

Current Receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Stores and Spares 12,230,616 10,196,803
Provision, Beverage and Others 23,253,071 16,792,221
Uniform and Linen 35,325,673 32,650,435
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 14,134,600 14,492,046
Total 84,943,960 74,131,505

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Cash in Hand 2,766,717 1,396,489
Balances with Bank 29,096,699 27,294,202
Total 31,863,416 28,690,691




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

r

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

32.03.2079 |

31.03.2078

Authorized Share Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000 |

1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,000,000,000 |

1,000,000,000

Subscribed and Fully Paid up

84,257,973 Shares of Rs.10/- each 842,579,730 842,579,730
Total 842,579,730 842,579,730
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Balance at the beginning of the year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Add: Bonus Issue - -
Balance at the end of year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 1,142,742 1,305,258
Retained Earnings 827,114,838 529,871,643
Total 886,744,768 589,664,089
Note 3.11: Loans and Borrowings
Particulars 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Secured- Hire Purchase 9,170,921 1,124,779
Total 9,170,921 1,124,779
Current
Overdraft and Working Capital Loan 51,611,159 93,179,658
Current Portion of Hire Purchase Loan 2,209,515 1,399,846
Total 53,820,674 94,579,504
Note 3.12: Employee Benefits
Particulars 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Gratuity 76,253,510 114,515,139
Less: Plan Assets (2,253,240) (6,174,356)
Net Gratuity Liability 74,000,270 108,340,783
Accumulated Leave 48,972,399 63,966,570
Total 122,972,669 172,307,353
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 11,250,076 9,881,025
Bonus Payable 31,517,125 -
Total 42,767,201 9,881,025

imited
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.13: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Advance Income Tax 33,536,069 27,323,287
Income Tax Liability - -
Total 33,536,069 27,323,287

Note 3.14: Trade and Other Payable

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 11,679,331 17,432,234
Unclaimed Dividend 10,514,616 11,376,471
Total 22,193,947 28,808,705
Current
Sundry Creditors 220,263,657 246,716,787
Other Payable
Advances Received 87,860,557 90,632,297
Civil Aviation Fee 394,695 484,061
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 6,487,466 1,834,241
Service Charge 54,648,520 18,495,028
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 10,189,783 8,134,351
Other Liabilities 46,517,786 64,271,670
Total 452,696,493 456,902,464

Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.

Note 3.15: Revenue from Operation

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Room 246,990,610 57,427,873
Food 972,822,567 350,303,640
Beverage 70,835,073 10,458,605
Cigar and Cigarettes 658,625 40,180
Telephone 11,201 4,837
Laundry Income 1,229,505 1,977,242
Business Centre 13,725 -
Total 1,292,561,306 420,212,377
Note 3.16: Other Income
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Premises Rental Charge 26,126,938 1,544,451
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 1,765,522 1,474,942
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 133,166 828,138
Miscellaneous Receipts 6,253,092 2,704,113
Income from Service Charge 25,267,588 6,532,211
Dividend Income 1,222,517 -
Profit on Sale of Assets 3,110,365 518,509
Profit on Sale of Investment 9,170,962 -
Exchange Gain 2,124,666 -
Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF) - 4,483,750
Reversal of Incentive Management Fee - 7,835,582
Reversal of Provision for Leave 1,143,502 7,792,516
Unclaimed Balance Written Back 244,415 -
Total 76,562,733 33,714,212




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.17: Consumption of Food and Beverage
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Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Food 241,240,023 121,164,519
Beverage 18,544,340 2,705,874
Cigarettes 407,685 20,582
Total 260,192,048 123,890,975
Note 3.18: Employee Benefit Expenses
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Salary and Wages 159,441,674 90,066,478
Allowances 49,102,514 27,437,676
Overtime 1,709,000 196,050
Employees Meal 21,731,259 7,657,809
Soaltee Staff Welfare 2,496,617 3,100,862
Gratuity 10,188,080 7,339,553
Provident Fund 11,894,843 8,684,671
Clinic Expenses 2,025,427 1,437,148
Amortization of Staff Loan 1,188,456 206,009
Incentive Exit Scheme 32,099,623 67,857,602
Bonus 31,517,125 -
Total 323,394,618 | 213,983,858
Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.
Note 3.19: Operating Expenses
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Linen 5,740,121 6,195,138
Laundry Supplies 19,521,677 21,801
Crockery & Cutlery 2,422,010 1,203,511
Silverware 220,150 4,068,270
Cleaning Supplies 7,714,558 3,339,523
F & B Paper Supplies 10,311,020 6,456,701
Guest Supplies 12,919,885 4,415,274
Water & Water Treatment 16,115,702 6,438,017
Garden Maintenance 2,103,112 7,035
Pest Control 2,588,000 1,330,745
Waste Removal 823,100 304,000
Power and Fuel 91,558,812 47,796,067
Repair and Maintenance 24,713,592 13,318,504
Total 196,751,739 94,894,586

imited

*
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.20: Other Expenses

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Rental Charges 7,277,087 2,533,105
Travelling 7,715,747 777,206
Transport and Conveyance 18,575,916 6,287,138
Audit Fee 550,000 550,000
Legal and Professional Fees 10,750,454 5,154,837
Directors' Meeting Fees 423,528 -
Licence & Taxes 19,713,693 18,832,228
Bank Charges 4,809,477 1,414,177
Annual General Meeting Expenses 662,555 528,665
Commissions 3,208,662 3,088,619
Insurance 7,985,808 9,148,448
Communication Expenses 4,350,466 3,875,751
Printing and Stationery 4,833,654 2,786,183
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 9,349,531 5,781,445
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 4,210,684 2,419,812
Training and Conference 1,900,800 1,986,300
Books and Newspaper 92,282 27,758
Membership & Subscription 2,175,432 988,770
Security Services 9,760,149 3,470,528
Uniform Expenses 6,274,728 1,470,925
Entertainment 785,959 306,302
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 5,536,344 7,529,464
Banquet Expenses 2,570,683 604,787
Kitchenette Expenses 4,314,205 1,878,942
Exchange Loss - 573,735
Corporate Social Responsibility 2,972,432 -
Miscellaneous 8,914,837 10,181,724
Total 154,715,113 97,196,849

Note 3.21: Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders.
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by
weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. If the number
of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a capitalization, bonus issue or
share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per

share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per shall has been done as stated above.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year 297,243,195 (224,933,498)
Number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 3.53 (2.67)
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit for the year 297,243,195 (224,933,498)
Weighted average number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 3.53 (2.67)
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 3.22: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according
to the following hierarchy:

The Company has used fair value model for measurement of its financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair
value hierarchy levels presented represent the available inputs considered to arriving at the fair value of
category of financial assets/liabilities.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
(accounting value) and considered if there exists factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book
value of assets or liabilities.

Amount in Rs.

As at 32.03.2079 Carrying Amount | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 307,611,614 307,611,614
Investment - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 31,863,416 31,863,416
Total At Amortized Cost 339,475,030 339,475,030
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 290,689,670 290,689,670
Total Financial Assets 630,164,700 - - 630,164,700
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 474,890,440 474,890,440
Loans and Borrowings 62,991,595 62,991,595
Total Financial Liabilities 537,882,035 - - 537,882,035
As at 31.03.2078 Carrying Amount | Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 241,554,279 241,554,279
Investment - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 28,690,691 28,690,691
Total At Amortized Cost 270,244,970 270,244,970
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment \ 283,895,258 | \ | 283,895,258
Total Financial Assets \ 554,140,228 | - | -| 554,140,228
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 485,711,169 485,711,169
Loans and Borrowings 95,704,283 95,704,283
Total Financial Liabilities 581,415,452 - - 581,415,452
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Financial Statements

4
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Additional Information
Share Capital

The Company has single class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share. Every member
holding equity shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid
up equity share capital.

Dividend

Dividend is proposed by the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.

Board of Directors have proposed 5% bonus shares and 21.31578947% cash dividend for the year 2078-
79 (previous year NIL). Accordingly, the total distribution by the Company from the profits arising

from 2078-79 is as follows:

Particulars Bonus Shares Cash Dividend
Proposed for 2078-79 42,128,987 179,602,521
Number of shares 4,212,899

Paid for 2077-78 (Amount) - -
No. of shares -

Reserves and Retained Earnings

a.

Share premium

The Company had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by the company
in excess of its face value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided
in Company Act 2063.

Other Reserves

The Company had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement
on this reserve since then.

Retained Earning

Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Company uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

Fair Value Reserve

This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments
that are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of the company was revalued. For the

first time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered
at deemed cost which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

Employee Benefits

a.

Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which Company
was required to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent
salary of the staff. Changes in Labour laws has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now
a defined contribution plan whereby Company is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic
remuneration as gratuity to employee with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. The Company has




enrolled itself and it’s employees in Social Security Fund (SSF) in Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it
has started making contribution towards Employee Gratuity in the fund.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Opening Liability 114,515,139 319,639,442
Payment Made (38,261,629) | (203,256,821)
Expenses Booked 10,188,080 7,339,553
Deposited in SSF (10,188,080) (7,339,553)
Government Grant towards SSF for Gratuity - (1,867,482)
Closing Liability 76,253,510 114,515,139

Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of

liability is as follows:

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Opening Liability 63,966,570 120,361,383
Service Cost 9,058,131 20,230,280
Interest Cost 4,858,469 6,243,913
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (15,060,102) (34,266,709)
Benefit Paid (13,850,669) (48,602,297)
Closing Liability (A) 48,972,399 63,966,570
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 48,972,399 63,966,570

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as

follows:

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Discount Rate 8.50% 6.50%
Rate of compensation increase 6% 6%
Average expected future service 13 14
Average duration of liabilities 10 12.5

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered

for calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2078-79 2078-78
Effect on:
- Service Cost (1,141,698) (2,465,544)
- Interest Cost 571,583 960,600
- Leave Liability (10,229,102) (13,610,076)

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for calcu-

lating the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Effect on:
- Service Cost 1,390,162 2,957,603
- Interest Cost (571,583) (960,600)
- Leave Liability 12,348,982 8,907,455

<1
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4.5

Lease

The Company has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future

minimum lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

Period 2078-79 2077-78
Up to one year 7,487,713 7,265,833
One to five years 5,633,377 12,343,552
Total 13,121,090 19,609,385

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets
on lease. Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

Period 2078-79 2077-78
Up to one year 33,831,520 36,007,149
One to five years 255,970,344 228,502,545
Above five years 50,406,757 310,150,800
Total 340,208,621 574,660,494

The Board of Directors of the Company has decided to grant waiver for the lease payments of lessees
whose business was significantly and adversely affected by COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent
government imposed lockdown.

4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, the Company has provided Rs. 2.97 million (previous year Rs. NIL) (1% of net profit
after tax) as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises
Act 2073.

4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value
of its financial instruments. The Company’s Board and senior management has overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management. The Company’s risk
management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company,
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the Company’s activities.

i. Market Risk

In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is
volatile to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic
issues, the tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/
international or geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the
company through years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the
past.

ii. Credit Risk

The company provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does it enjoy credit
facility from its creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of company
debtors’ ability to pay the company within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there
exist the credit risks to that extent. The company through its experience over the many years
has been managing such risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the
regular recoverability position by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk

The Company has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. The
Company monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and




4.8

iv.

r

forecasting.

The company current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly,
the liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become,
due does not exist.

Operational Risk

The Company has been in operation since more than 53 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority for
the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the company is required to also follow specific
operating guidelines issued by its franchise. Company believes that the controls implemented by the
company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The franchise also carries out
Control Self Assessment at reasonable interval where the company scored high level marks placing
it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by Franchise.

Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Company’s revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate
fluctuation so be on the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation
will contribute certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation
will have the risk of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the
exchange rate fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn
movement as well. The Company has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities for substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the company comprises of key management personnel, organization
having significant influence on the company, subsidiaries of the company and Board of Directors.

a.

Subsidiary Companies

The Company has made investment in two subsidiary companies. The Company has
presence on the Board of these two companies in proportion of its shareholding. Company
provides office space to the two subsidiaries on operating lease. Other than this, there is
no any transaction with subsidiary companies.

Rental Charge UL P T
e Holding balance
Name of Subsidiary o -
%o . This | Last
This Year | Last Year
Year | Year

H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. 99.63
Lease Rental Income 66,667 66,667 - -
Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. 100
Lease Rental Income 66,667 66,667 - -

Significant Influence

Entities having significant influence over the Company is as follows:

Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)

Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of the company. This company has four
representatives in the current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667 (previous
year Rs. 66,667) to SHL as operating lease rent. SHL has paid Rs. 1,050,000 to SEPL as operating
lease rent. There is no outstanding balance at the year end.

Other related entities

Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)

Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of the company. NAC has one

imited
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representative in the Board of SHL.

SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Revenue (in million)

Receivable (in million)

Particulars

This Year

Last Year

This Year

Last Year

Flight Catering Services

188.21 141.96

43.23 31.21

Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.

There is no transaction of this company with SHL.

Those charged with Governance

Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of the Company. The composition
of Board on the reporting date is as follows:

Name

Position

Representative of

Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista

Executive Chairman

Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha

Director

Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha

Director

Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah

Director

Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand

Director (till 14 April 2022)

Nepal Airlines Corporation

Mr. Ubaraj Adhikari

Director (from 15 April
2022)

Nepal Airlines Corporation

Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala Director Public Shareholder

Mr. Deepak Raj Joshi

Director (from 14 December
2021)

Independent Director

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for
attending each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as
Other Committee meetings during the year amounts to Rs. 0.4 million (previous year Rs. NIL).

Key Management Personnel

The company’s key management personnel are Executive Chairman & Vice President of SHL and
General Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu.

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 16.48 million (previous
year Rs. 12.59 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman also includes the

performance incentive paid based on the profit of the Company.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend

Total unpaid dividend amounted to Rs. 10.51 million (previous year Rs. 11.38 million).

4.10 Trade and Other Receivable

4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee Recoverable from Airlines

Civil Aviation Fees levied on In-flight catering services provided on international flights by the company
to three different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted
to Rs 7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected
under Non-current Trade and other receivables.
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4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways

Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the
reporting date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency
proceedings. In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by
the Committee of Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet
Airways & confirmed by Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the
outcome of the proceeding and business revival is yet to be known.

4.11 Lien on Company’s Assets

The company current and non-current assets where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to
bankers providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan
against a vehicle only amounting to Rs. 62.99 million (previous year Rs. 94.57 million).

4.12 Contingent Liability

The Company recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation
as a result of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate
reflection in the current financial year.

4.13 Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by the company amounted to Rs. 12.52 million (previous year Rs.
8.45 million).

4.14 Litigations or legal cases
i. Income tax Matters

Revenue Tribunal has decided in company’s favour against the appeal made relating to assessment
pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the Honourable Supreme
Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. The company is of the opinion that there would
not be significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the Court.

ii. Assessment status

The Company has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that would
arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

The Company has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of
expenses on Self Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2072-73 and additional demand of
tax Rs. 2,413,333 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management
considers no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for.
Any tax claim will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

The Company has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of
expenses on Self Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2073-74 and additional demand of
tax Rs. 134,155 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management
considers no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for.
Any tax claim will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

The Company has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of
expenses on Self Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2074-75 and additional demand
of tax Rs. 4,810,246 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The
management considers no significant obligation that would arise that would be required
to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.
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iii. Arbitration

The company has filed a writ petition in the High Court Patan and has got court stay order on the
issue of outstanding receivable recovery pending settlement by then hotel manager, Holiday Inns
China Ltd. (Manager) through UNCITRAL regional office singapore for which the Company objected
and filed a writ petition to High Court Patan against it. Similarly, the manager has filed a petition to
supreme court of Nepal to vacate the stay order. The case is under the sub-judice and pending with
the courts.

iv. Legal cases

The company has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its
regular business.

Capital Commitment

Capital contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 160.15 million
(Previous year Rs. 18.07 million).

Letter of Credit
There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.
Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour
law, this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. The Company has not paid

during the year out of this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.
Operating Segment

Management of the company has considered the total operation to be segregable into three operating
segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core hotel business: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related recreational
facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major segment.

ii. Flight catering: The Flight Catering Division provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and related
facilities to meet its standards.

iii. Horizon Lounge: Horizon Lounge Unit provides airport lounge services to the travelers at
Tribhuwan International Airport (TIA).

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows: (Amount in millions)

Operating Segment Hot:tli(?:er- Fl:‘ge?itnga- IE::::;: Total
Revenue
- Food 499.56 425.14 48.12 972.82
- Room 246.99 246.99
- Beverage 46.69 2.61 21.54 70.84
- Others 1.86 0.05 1.91
Interest Income 1.90 1.90
Other Income 74.66 74.66
Total Revenue 871.66 427.75 69.71 1,369.12
Expenses*
Consumption Cost 145.45 97.92 16.82 260.19
Employee Benefit Expenses 213.74 102.69 6.96 323.39
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 229.05 109.25 13.17 351.47
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* Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while

common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.
**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.

Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the
company. The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the company is based
on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its
strategic needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets.

The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient
capital management. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure
with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to
sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company’s focus is on keeping strong
total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential
future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Company. The Company’s
will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The
management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The
Company'’s goal is to continue to be able to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to
distribute dividends in future periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the
years reported in this financial statement.

Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.

*

imited
Depreciation and Amortization 89.78 4.25 6.33 100.36
Finance Cost 18.54 18.54
Total Expenses 696.56 314.11 43.28 1,053.95
Segment Result 175.10 113.64 26.43 315.17
Income Tax 17.93
Profit/(Loss) for the Period 297.24
Segment Assets 2,237.03 169.56 43.14 | 2,449.73
Segment Liabilities** 2,449.73
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Shareholders of
Soaltee Hotel Limited (Group)

Opinion:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soaltee Hotel Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”), which comprise of Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 32,
2079 (July 16, 2022), Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
consolidated financial statements, read together with significant accounting policies and notes to the
accounts forming part of the accounts, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Group as on Ashad 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), its financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the "Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements" section of our report. We are independent of The Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidences we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements of the current period. Based on the circumstances and facts of the audit, we
consider following as key audit matters:

S.N. Details of Key Audit Matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
1 Revenue Recognition

(Refer Note 2.2.16 "Revenue" and Note 3.16 of the financial statements)

Revenue from sale of service (hereinafter | Our audit procedures included the following:

referred to as "Revenue”) is recognized at the | ,  Agsessed the appropriateness of the Group's

time of delivery of services and it is probable
that the future economic benefits will flow to
the Company and that revenue and associated
costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably

revenue recognition accounting policies in line
with NFRS 15 (Revenue) and testing the
accounting of revenue in books of accounts

o thereof.
measured and no any performance obligation

is pending with respect to revenue recognized.

'"'/

B.K. Agrawai & Cu. is a inenbet uf Crowe Glubal, a Swiss verein. Cach member firm of Crowe Global is a separale and independent lagal antity. B.K. Agrawal & Co. and its amna\m: ae n

e
NV
élt('()(-‘ > /

responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not have an ownership or partnership interest in B.K. Agrawal & Co—



B.K. AGRAWAL & CoO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

S.N.

Details of Key Audit Matters

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Revenue is key driver of the business and
recorded in complex IT system and
environment. Likewise, revenue also includes
high number of individual and low value
transaction therefore in respect of services
provided there is risk that revenue is recorded
inappropriately relative to the provision of the
underlying service.

Therefore, due to significant risk embedded in
revenue we have identified revenue
recognition as a Key Audit Matter for the
current period.

Evaluated the integrity of the Group's general
information and technology control
environment and tested the operating
effectiveness of IT application controls over
revenue recognition, the detailed process flow
of sales, segregation of duties for the process
followed, automated steps and manually
intervened processes.

Performed detailed analysis of Revenue,
analytical testing with sales information filed
with tax authorities, testing the timing of its
recognition and accuracy of the amounts

recognized and verification of the supporting
information of the Revenue transactions.

e Tested a sample of revenue transactions in
relation to the provision of services, room
sales and assessing them against relevant
supporting documentation/sales contracts to
determine income has been appropriately
recognized.

2 Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property
(refer Note 2.2.6, 2.2.8, 3.1 and 3.3 of the Financial Statements)

There are areas where management | We assessed the controls in place over the fixed
judgement impacts the carrying value of | asset, evaluated the appropriateness of
property, plant and equipment and investment | capitalization process, performed tests on costs
property and their respective depreciation or | capitalized, the timeliness of the capitalization of
amortization rates. These include the decision | the assets and the derecognition criteria for assets
to capitalize or expense the costs, the annual | retired from active use. In performing these
asset life review: the timeliness of the | procedures, we reviewed the judgments made by
capitalization of assets and the use of | the management including the nature of underlying
management assumptions and estimates for | costs capitalized, impairment, determination of
the determination or the measurement and | realizable value of the assets retired from the
recognition criteria for assets retired from | active use, the appropriateness of useful life of
active use. Due to the materiality in the context | assets. We have observed that the management
of the balance sheet of the company and the | has regularly reviewed the aforesaid judgements
level of judgment and estimates required, we | and there are no material misstatement of
consider this to be a Key Audit Matter. impairment and capitalization of assets.

Other Information:

The management of the Group are responsible for the other information such as "Report of Board
of Director's/Chairman's Statement" to be presented in the Annual Report and Accounts. Our opinion on the
consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express
any audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated above, any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on audit work done
by us on consolidated financial statement, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements:

The Group’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of each
company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that are operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. -
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In preparing the consolidated financial statement, the respective management and Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Nepal Standards
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial information.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of consolidated financial statement, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. We are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Group has adequate internal financial controls in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors'
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statement,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statement represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be considered to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of two subsidiaries, "H| Soaltee
Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd." whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Rs.296.27 million and net assets of Rs.295.51 million as at July 16, 2022 and net profit of Rs.1.97 million and
net cash outflows amounting to Rs.15.96 million for the year then ended. These financial statements and
other financial information have been audited by other auditors who have expressed an unmodified opinion
on those statements. Those reports have been furnished to us by the management, and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements in so far as it relates to the accounts and disclosures included in respect of
these subsidiaries, are based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work
done.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
On the basis of our examination, we would like to further report that:

i) We have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

i) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far
as appears from our examination of such books;

i) In our opinion, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss, Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity attached thereto,
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other Explanatory Notes & information dealt
with by this report are in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2006 and are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the Group;

iv)  In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the business of the
Group has been conducted satisfactorily; and

V) To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the Group necessary for the purposes of the audit, we
have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the Group
have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the Group or committed any accounting fraud in the Group.

)

B.K. Agrawal, FCA

Managing Partner
Kathmandu For: B.K. Agrawal & Co.
Date: 17 October, 2022 (31 Ashwin, 2079) Chartered Accountants
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General Information

Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Company or SHL) is a limited liability company registered with Office of
Company Registrar as per erstwhile Company Act. Its shares are enlisted with Security Board of
Nepal (SEBON) and listed and traded at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. (NEPSE). The registered office
of the Company and the principal place of business is located at Tahachal, Kathmandu, Nepal.
Since its incorporation more than 53 years, SHL has been catering the Tourism sector services with
five-star quality hotel facilities and flight catering kitchen since its commercial operation. SHL has
invested in two subsidiaries namely H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd.
for expanding its hotel business. Through Soaltee Hospitality Ltd., wholly owned subsidiary, it has
also invested in Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.

SHL owns and operates a deluxe luxurious property classified under Five Star category by the
Government of Nepal with business name and brand “The Soaltee Kathmandu” hotel at Tahachal,
Kathmandu Metropolitan City ward No 13, Kathmandu, Nepal. The property (hotel) is owned and
operated by the SHL. The Soaltee Kathmandu has 285 saleable rooms ranging from Deluxe, Club to
Suites. Further, the Company also owns and operates The Soaltee Gate Gourmet an Inflight Catering
Division under a Technical Assistance Agreement with Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Limited, Singapore.

The consolidated financial statements is prepared by consolidating the financial statements of
Soaltee Hotel Limited (the Parent or SHL), H I Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary with
99.63% (previous year 73.63% holding) and Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. (100% Subsidiary), collectively
stated as “the Group” hereinafter. The Group’s principal activity is to invest in hotel industry. The
Group has invested hotels in Kathmandu and Nepalgunj.

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by the meeting of the Board of
Directors on 17 October 2022 (31 Ashwin 2079) and has recommended for approval by shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Basis of Preparation
2.1.1. Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

2.1.2. Basis of Measurement

These consolidated financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for the
following material items:

— Investment in shares of entities other than subsidiaries, which have been measured at fair value
— Staff loans provided at subsidized interest rate, which have been measured at amortized cost.

— Other long-term liabilities (leave liability), which has been measured at present value of the
obligation

2.1.3. Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments.
It also requires management to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The Group makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates
and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
In the future, actual result may differ from these estimates and assumptions. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are:
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a) Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment

Management of each company reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and
equipment in each year. Such life are dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life
of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors
including relative efficiency and operating costs.

b) Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined
on the basis of discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates
on anticipated commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory
environment, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to
changes in the above mentioned factors could impact on the carrying value of assets.

c) Recognition of deferred tax

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The Group based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group.

Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using a known future tax rate. Deferred tax
assets are recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets
where the management believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.

d) Other long term employee benefits

Significant judgment is required to determine the estimated liability that shall arise on part
of unused/accumulated leave by the staff and which is generally paid out on retirement or
termination of employment. Valuation of such is done by qualified actuary using assumption
like interest rate, rate of increase in annual compensation, remaining service period etc. Factors
considered may change depending on market changes or legal changes which are beyond the
control of the Group.

e) Estimation uncertainty due to COVID-19

The Group has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources,
profitability, liquidity position, prospect possible alternatives for financing arrangements,
supply chain and demand for its services. The Group stands at comfortable liquidity position
to meet its commitments for the year ended 16 July 2022. The Group does not foresee any
disruption in materials supplies for the hotel operations.

The Group has also assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on the carrying value of property,
plant & equipment, intangible assets, investments, trade receivables, inventories, and other
current assets appearing in the financial statements of the Group. In developing the assumptions
and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the Group as at the date of approval of these Financial statements has used internal
and external sources of information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the
carrying amounts of these assets.

The impact of the global health pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date
of approval of these financial statements and the Group will continue to closely monitor any
material changes to future economic conditions.

2.1.4. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Group’s
functional currency.
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2.2. Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are set out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain accounting
estimates. The areas where significant judgments and estimates have been made in preparing the
financial statements and their effects are disclosed in relevant areas.

2.2.1. Basis of Consolidation

Where the Group has the power, either directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating
policies of another entity or business so as to obtain benefits from its activities, it is classified as a
subsidiary. The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Group and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) as if they formed a single entity.

Consolidation of financial statements of subsidiaries has been done in line with NFRS 10:
Consolidated Financial Statements. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
financial statements are combined line by line by adding the like items of assets, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. The carrying
amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary
are eliminated. All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group are eliminated in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. SHL has opted for carve out alternative accounting treatment
issued by ICAN relation to use uniform accounting policies for like transactions in consolidation of
financial statement. Under the carve out alternative treatment, the investment made in associate by
SHL'’s fully owned subsidiary is measured at cost instead of measuring it using equity method.

2.2.2 Associates

Profits or losses arising on transactions between the Group and its associates are recognized only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying
value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalized and included in the carrying amount
of the associate. Where there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.

Investment in associates of the subsidiaries are recorded at cost in line with the carve out issued by
ICAN for alternative accounting treatment as described in note 2.2.1.

2.2.3 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
i. Recognition

The Group initially recognizes financial assets on trade date which is the date on which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, or an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transactions costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue.

ii. Classification and Measurement
Financial Assets

The classification and measurement of financial assets depend on how these are managed (the
entity’s business model) and their contractual cash-flows characteristics. These factors
determine whether the financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCT’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVPL’).
- At amortized cost:
Financial assets at amortized cost are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments for which the Group has intent and ability to hold till maturity. They are
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initially recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent
to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured at amortized cost using effective
interest rate method less any impairment losses.

- At fair value through profit or loss:
Financial assets are classified at fair value through profit or loss if the Group manages
such instruments and makes purchases and sales decisions based on its fair value.
Attributable transaction costs and changes in fair value are taken to revenue.

- At fair value through other comprehensive income:
Financial assets at FVOCI are non-derivative financial assets that are not classified in any of
the above category. Financial assets at FVOCI are recognized initially at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are
measured at fair value, as far as such fair value is available, and changes therein, which
are recognized in other comprehensive income and presented in the fair value reserve in
equity. When an investment is derecognized, gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified
to retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these financial liabilities are measured at amortized costs using effective interest rate method.

iii. Derecognition
Financial Assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flow from the
financial assets expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of the ownership of the financial
assets are transferred or in which the Group neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the
risk and rewards of the ownership and it does not retain control of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the assets
(or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the assets derecognized) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including any new assets obtained less any new liability assumed) and (ii)
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) is
recognized in retained earnings.

Financial Liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

iv. Offsetting

The financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when and only when, the Group has a legal right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

v. Amortized cost measurement

The ‘amortized cost’ of a financial asset and financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between
initial amount recognized and the maturity amount minus any reduction for impairment.

vi. Fair value measurement

Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties at an arm’s length transaction. Quoted
market values represent fair value when a financial instrument is traded in an organized and
liquid market. Where quoted market values are not available, fair values are estimated by other
techniques.
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vii. Identification and measurement of impairment

Financial assets

At each reporting date the Group assesses the objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired or not. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that loss event has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor

— breach of contract, such as default or delinquency by a debtor

— observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of
debtor

The amount of loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and amount
the management considers it as recoverable on the basis of financial position of the party and
appropriate estimation made by the management. Receivables considered as less likely to be
received are provided allowance for loss and charged to Statement of Profit or Loss.

In addition, for an investment in an unquoted equity security, a significant or prolonged decline
in its net worth is objective evidence of impairment.

Impairment losses are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss and reflected in an allowance
account against debtors. Impairment losses on equity investment are routed through Statement
of OCI. Interest on the impaired assets continues to be recognized through the unwinding of
the discount. If an event occurring after the impairment was recognized causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through income
statement (OCI in case of available for sale investment).

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity investments increases and the increase can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, then the
impairing loss is reversed through profit or loss; otherwise, any increase in fair value is recognized
through OCI.

2.2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Non-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost and value in use. An impairment loss is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss. Provisions against impairment are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Impairment charges are included
in profit or loss except to the extent they reverse gains previously recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income.

2.2.5 Foreign Currency

Transactions entered into by the Group entities in a currency other than the currency of the
primary economic environment in which they operate (the “functional currency” is Rs.) are
recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of unsettled monetary assets and liabilities are recognized immediately
in profit or loss.

2.2.6 Property, Plant and Equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase
price and other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future
unavoidable costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized
within provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and
maintenance are expensed as incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of the asset separately, if the
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component/ part has cost which is significant to the total cost of the asset having useful life that is
materially different from that of the remaining asset. These components are depreciated over their
useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognized.

Capital Work in Progress
Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress
(CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at management’s intended use, the cost of
construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and
depreciation commences.

Salvage Value

The Group has assessed the salvage value of all its property, plant and equipment to be 5% of its
original cost.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until
they are complete and available for use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property,
plant and equipment so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.

Management of the Group has assessed useful life of the following category of assets as mentioned.

Category of Assets Estimated useful life
Building 35 - 70 years
Other civil structures 20 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 10 - 30 years
Vehicle 10 - 20 years
Computer and accessories 7 years

Office Equipment 10 years
Furniture, fixture and furnishing 10 years
Leasehold Development 3 years

2.2.7 Intangible Assets
Computer Software

Purchased computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring to use the software. These costs are amortized over the estimated useful lives.

2.2.8 Investment Property

The Group holds certain assets (land and building) for purpose other than its core operating
function. Such assets are classified as investment property.

Items of investment property are initially recognized at cost. Cost includes the purchase price and

other directly attributable costs as well as the estimated present value of any future unavoidable
costs of dismantling and removing items. The corresponding liability is recognized within
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provisions. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow in to the Group. Ongoing repair and maintenance
are expensed as incurred.

When an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property following a change
in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the item
and its fair value is recognized directly in equity if it is a gain. Upon disposal of the item, the gain is
transferred to retained earnings. Any loss is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Incomes arising from use of investment property by third parties are recognized as lease income from
operating lease. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is
booked as operating lease income, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight
line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

Salvage Value

Group has assessed the salvage value of its depreciable investment property to be 5% of its original
cost.

Depreciation

Land that form part of investment property is not depreciated. Depreciation is provided on other
items of investment property so as to write-off their carrying value over the expected useful
economic lives.

Depreciable investment properties are depreciated on Straight Line Method over their useful life.
Management considered the useful life of investment property to be of 55 years.

2.2.9 Investments

Investments in shares of the companies are classified as either at amortized cost or at fair value. The
classification of investment and its subsequent measurement is dependent on the business model
for managing such investments and contractual cash flow characteristics.

Investments are measured at fair value unless measured at amortized cost. Investments are
measured at amortized cost if such investment is held with in order to collect contractual cash flows
and contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Subsequent changes in the investments measured at amortized cost are charged to Profit or Loss.
Investments measured at fair value opting the routing through Other Comprehensive Income, at
initial recognition, for adjusting the changes in fair value are charged through Other Comprehensive
Income that forms part of the equity of the Company. Changes in fair value of other investments are
charged to Profit or Loss.

2.2.10 Inventories
Stock of food, beverages, store and operating supplies are initially recognized at cost and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated

selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the variable selling expenses.

The cost is determined on weighted average method and includes expenditure incurred directly in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their present location and condition.

2.2.11 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash balances, call deposits and other short term highly liquid
investments. For the purpose, any cash placement deposits, call deposit or other highly liquid items
with the maturity period of 90 days from the date of transaction is considered as cash equivalent.

2.2.12 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at transaction value less allowance for impairment.
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Staff loan are measured at amortized cost. Discounting rate has been arrived by considering
comparable market rates of similar types of loan. Difference of amortized value and book value of
loan is charged to profit or loss for the period of staff loan.

2.2.13 Share capital

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not
meet the definition of a financial liability or financial asset. The Group’s equity shares are classified
as equity instruments.

2.2.14 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are either defined benefit plan or defined contribution plan. Employee benefits of
SHL comprise of gratuity, provident fund and accumulated leave. These benefits are provided as per
the Employee Service Manual and Collective Bargaining Agreement between Employee Union and
the Company.

Provident Fund-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL pays pre-defined Provident Fund benefit to Social Security Fund (SSF) (prior to Chaitra 2076
provident fund were contributed to employee provident fund) and SHL does not have any legal or
constructive obligation to pay additional amount in future. Contributions to Provident fund are
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the year to which they relate.

Gratuity-Defined Contribution Plan

SHL is required to pay pre-defined amount to Social Security Fund as gratuity to employees. SHL
accrues 8.33% of basic salary of staff as gratuity benefits in accordance with the Labor Law of Nepal
till Falgun 2076 while SHL has deposited Employee Gratuity in SSF from Chaitra 2076. The amount
presented in financial statements is the actual liability of gratuity at each reporting date.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual
leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Accumulated leaves, encashment of which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the
end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability
at the present value of the obligation as at the reporting date determined based on an actuarial
valuation.

2.2.15 Income Tax

Deferred Tax

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the asset can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected
realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates that are
expected to apply in subsequent periods.

Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year using tax rates at the

reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax is
calculated reasonably in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act as per management
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assumption and best judgment.

General corporate tax rate is 25%. SHL is entitled to a rebate of 15% on the General tax rate as
per the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058. Additionally, for FY 2078/79, the Finance Act 2079
has declared additional rebate of 50% on tax liability to hotel business affected by COVID-19.
Accordingly, tax rate applicable to the SHL for current fiscal year is 10.63% (previous year rate was
1%).

2.2.16 Revenue
Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the
group and that revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of Value Added
Taxes, Civil Aviation Fee and Service Charges where applicable.

Revenue from Sale of Services

Revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of services and is stated net of Value Added Tax (VAT)
and Service Charges. Revenue from The Soaltee Gate Gourmet -Flight Catering Division sales is
stated net of Civil Aviation Fee & Service charge.

Revenue from package sales is disclosed net of credits and refunds, included as part of the package.
Service Charge

Income from service charges is recognized on accrual basis net of contribution to be made to the
Hotel Association Nepal (HAN) and the Employees as per Labor Rules as per the previous
agreement between HAN and representatives of the Employees Union.

Dividend

Dividend income from investment in shares is recognized when the right to receive the payment is
established.

Other Income
Other income are recognized on accrual basis when there are reasonable basis to ascertain the

amount and there is reasonable basis for recoverability except for certain membership fees which are
insignificant to the total revenue.

2.2.17 Expenses

Expenses are accounted on accrual basis where there are reasonable basis to estimate ascertain the
obligation and rationality of such obligation.

License Fee

License fees payable in relation to technical assistance to Gate Gourmet Singapore Pte. Ltd, to
operate the Flight Catering Unit under the brand name of ‘The Soaltee Gate Gourmet’ is based on a
fixed percentage of the Net Sales Value as specified in the Technical Assistance Agreement.

Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is provided in line with the provisions of Bonus Act 2030 BS.

2.2.18 Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys
aright to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. For arrangements
entered into prior to 1 Shrawan 2074 the group has determined whether the arrangement contain
lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.
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SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement for use of property at The Soaltee Gate
Gourmet. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and the same amount is booked
as operating lease expenses, which the Group believes is more representative than the straight line
method, in line with para 33 of NAS 17: Leases.

Group has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use its facilities and
infrastructures to third parties. The lease rental is adjusted for inflation rate periodically and
the same amount is booked as operating lease income, which the Company believes is more
representative than the straight line method, in line with para 50 of NAS 17: Leases.

2.2.19 Provisions

The Group applies NAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets in accounting for
non-financial liabilities.

Provisions are recognized for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is
more likely than not that a transfer of economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, which
can be reliably estimated. Provision is made for the anticipated costs when an obligation exists.

2.2.20 Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. Based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for
processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating
cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The Group classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Group classifies a liability as current when:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
2.2.21 Segment Reporting

The Group’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Company’s management of the Group, which is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments. All transactions between business
segments are conducted on an arm’s length basis, with intra-segment revenue and costs being
eliminated centrally. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in
determining business segment performance.

2.2.22 Government Grant
Government grants, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is recognized when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to grant and the
grants will be received. Government grants is recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate.

2.2.23 Operating Cycle

The Company considers its operating cycle to be of 12 months.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.1: Property, Plant & Equipment

Amount in Rs.

Particulars ﬁ..MMMME Building _ﬂ“ﬂ.”“% NMMHM“HW HH_WMM“MMH t Computers Vehicles Leasehold | Capital WIP Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2077 | 149,488,779 | 848,246,126 |1,118,814,465 | 451,313,201 | 6,646,815 | 68,203,441 | 80,281,071 -| 32,353,681 | 2,755,347,579
Addition - 33,201,282 61,667,805 4,849,245 118,995 583,098 - 7,081,573 39,581,854 147,083,852
Disposal/Transfer - - (2,172,567) (1,228,149) | (260,492) - - -1 (55,915,416) (59,576,624)
Balance at 31.03.2078 | 149,488,779 | 881,447,408 |1,178,309,703 | 454,934,297 | 6,505,318 | 68,786,539 | 80,281,071 7,081,573 | 16,020,119 | 2,842,854,807
Addition - 32,708,375 20,576,496 2,078,087 - 1,681,929 | 40,924,421 | 10,061,340 | 195,379,270 303,409,918
Disposal/Transfer - - (17,948,770) (933,405) | (200,927) -1 (6,212,585) - | (44,129,405) (69,425,092)
Balance at 32.03.2079 | 149,488,779 | 914,155,783 |1,180,937,429 | 456,078,979 | 6,304,391 | 70,468,468 (114,992,907 | 17,142,913 | 167,269,984 | 3,076,839,633
Depreciation and Impairment Loss
Balance at 01.04.2077 -| 281,143,330 | 687,182,475 | 265,814,216 | 6,224,376 | 41,837,630 | 39,180,916 - -| 1,321,382,942
Charge for the year - 20,754,214 37,009,281 24,678,816 90,124 4,815,152 3,704,970 135,164 - 91,187,721
Disposal - - (1,403,584) (1,228,149) | (260,492) - - - - (2,892,225)
Balance at 31.03.2078 -| 301,897,544 | 722,788,172 | 289,264,883 | 6,054,008 | 46,652,782 | 42,885,886 135,164 -| 1,409,678,438
Charge for the year - 21,790,875 36,609,381 24,729,285 101,666 4,906,167 4,604,800 5,231,562 - 97,973,736
Disposal - - (17,931,263) (933,275) | (200,927) -1 (6,124,681) - - (25,190,146)
Balance at 32.03.2079 - | 323,688,419 | 741,466,290 | 313,060,893 | 5,954,747 | 51,558,949 | 41,366,005 5,366,726 -| 1,482,462,028
| Net Book Value
At 01.04.2077 149,488,779 | 567,102,796 | 431,631,990 | 185,498,985 | 422,439 | 26,365,811 | 41,100,155 -| 32,353,681 | 1,433,964,637
At 31.03.2078 149,488,779 | 579,549,864 | 455,521,531 | 165,669,414 | 451,310 | 22,133,757 | 37,395,185 6,946,409 | 16,020,119 | 1,433,176,369
At 32.03.2079 149,488,779 | 590,467,364 | 439,471,139 | 143,018,086 | 349,644 | 18,909,519 | 73,626,902 | 11,776,187 | 167,269,984 | 1,594,377,605

Property, Plant and Equipment under construction
Assets under construction majorly comprises of the works related to Lobby Renovation Project includes cost of assets Rs. 123.10 million, Himalayan Wing Project includes cost of
assets Rs. 11.06 million, capital advance Rs. 29.89 million and other related costs Rs. 3.23 million. The amount shall be capitalized to respective heads as and when the assets are

available for use.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.2: Intangible Assets
Amount in Rs.

Particulars Software Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2077 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal/Transfer - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 14,937,654 14,937,654
Addition - -
Disposal - _
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,937,654 14,937,654
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2077 12,902,915 12,902,915
Charge for the year 828,401 828,401
Disposal - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 13,731,316 13,731,316
Charge for the year 402,242 402,242
Disposal - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 14,133,558 14,133,558
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2077 2,034,739 2,034,739
At 31.03.2078 1,206,338 1,206,338
At 32.03.2079 804,096 804,096

Note 3.3: Investment Property

Amount in Rs.

Particulars Freehold Land Building Total
Cost
Balance at 01.04.2077 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal/Transfer - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 4,707,287 166,146,812 170,854,100
Amortization
Balance at 01.04.2077 - 77,719,236 77,719,236
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 31.03.2078 - 79,698,359 79,698,359
Charge for the year - 1,979,123 1,979,123
Disposal - - -
Balance at 32.03.2079 - 81,677,482 81,677,482
Net Book Value
At 01.04.2077 4,707,287 88,427,576 93,134,864
At 31.03.2078 4,707,287 86,448,453 91,155,741
At 32.03.2079 4,707,287 84,469,330 89,176,618




Soaltee Hotel Limited
* * *
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.4: Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)
Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences using known future tax rate. Deferred tax assets are
recognized in respect of all temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where the management
believes it is probable that these assets will be recovered.
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Amount in Rs.

. Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2078 to SOPL to OCI 32.03.2079
Fixed Assets (45,629,725) (7,673,697) - (53,303,422)
Gratuity Provision 24,334,467 (8,130,596) - 16,203,871
Provision for Leave 13,592,896 (3,186,261) - 10,406,635
Trade and Other Receivable 8,843,678 1,062,500 - 9,906,178
Total 1,141,316 (17,928,054) - (16,786,738)
q Credit/(Charge) | Credit/(Charge)
Particulars 01.04.2077 to SOPL to OCI 31.03.2078
Fixed Assets (36,276,929 (9,352,796) - (45,629,725)
Gratuity Provision 53,629,411 (29,294,944 - 24,334,467
Provision for Leave 25,576,794 (11,983,898) - 13,592,896
Trade and Other Receivable 7,781,178 1,062,500 - 8,843,678
Total 50,710,454 (49,569,138) - 1,141,316
Note 3.5: Investments
Amount in Rs.
Particulars 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
At Amortized Cost - -
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI 272,982,742 273,145,258
Total 272,982,742 273,145,258
Current
At Amortized Cost 27,500,000 10,000,000
At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - -
At Fair Value Through OCI - -
Total 27,500,000 10,000,000
Investment comprises the following:
At Amortized Cost (A) 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Term Deposit 27,500,000 10,000,000
Total Investment at Amortized Cost 27,500,000 10,000,000
At Fair Value Through OCI (B)
Investment in Associates
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited (2,600 shares of HK$ 1) - 16,538
Less: Allowance for Impairment - (16,538)
Net investment - -
Soaltee Sibkirm Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 261,840,000 261,840,000
Sub-total 261,840,000 261,840,000
Investment in other Entities
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd.
(100,000 shares of Rs. 100 each) 11,142,742 11,305,258
Sub-total 11,142,742 11,305,258
Total Investment through OCI 272,982,742 273,145,258
Proportion of voting rights
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. 24% 24%
H I Soaltee Management Co. Limited - 26%
Himal International Power Corp. Pvt. Ltd. 6% 6%

During the period, the Company has disposed off the investment of H I Soaltee Management Co. Ltd.
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.6: Trade and Other Receivable
Amount in Rs.

Particulars | 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Other Receivable 7,051,419 7,051,419
Deposit for Appeal 4,454,681 4,454,681
Deposits 4,338,095 3,714,814
Loans and Advances to Employees 18,921,585 26,088,551
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,228,540 2,015,435
Total 35,994,320 43,324,900
Less: Allowance for Impairment (7,051,419) (7,051,419)
Total 28,942,901 36,273,481
Current
Trade Receivable
Trade Receivable 248,716,457 163,320,827
Less: Allowance for Impairment (39,565,887) (34,565,887)
Trade Receivable-Net 209,150,570 128,754,940
Other Receivable
Loans and Advances to Employees 11,634,470 15,749,658
Loans and Advances to Other 34,177,783 24,600,047
Advances to Contractor and Suppliers 18,939,147 1,857,037
VAT Recoverable 1,959,002 32,298,270
Management Fees Recoverable 4,036,281 4,036,281
Others 1,007,394 626,537
Deferred Employee Benefit Expenses 1,095,683 1,658,448
Total Other Receivable 72,849,760 80,826,278
Total 282,000,330 | 209,581,218

Additional information on other receivable included in non-current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.1.
Trade receivables are normally collected as per credit terms with the parties, generally within a period of
90 days. Trade receivable is non-interest bearing. Additional information on Trade receivable included in
Current receivable is provided in Note 4.10.2.

Note 3.7: Inventories

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Stores and Spares 12,230,616 10,196,803
Provision, Beverage and Others 23,253,071 16,792,221
Uniform and Linen 35,325,673 32,650,435
Crockery, Cutlery etc. 14,134,600 14,492,046
Total 84,943,960 74,131,505

Note 3.8: Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Cash in Hand 2,766,717 1,396,489
Balances with Bank 34,011,553 48,165,259
Total 36,778,270 49,561,748
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.9: Share Capital

Amount in Rs.

Particulars

32.03.2079 |

31.03.2078

Authorized Share Capital

150,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,500,000,000 |

1,500,000,000

Issued Share Capital

100,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10/- each

1,000,000,000 |

1,000,000,000

Subscribed and Fully Paid up

84,257,973 Shares of Rs.10/- each 842,579,730 842,579,730
Total 842,579,730 842,579,730
Reconciliation of no. of shares outstanding
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Balance at the beginning of the year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Add: Bonus Issue - -
Balance at the end of year 84,257,973 84,257,973
Details of Shareholding
Major Corporate Shareholders 69% 69%
General Shareholders 31% 31%
Note 3.10: Retained Earning and Reserves
Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Share Premium 16,000,000 16,000,000
Other Reserve 7,288,761 7,288,761
Revaluation Reserve 35,198,427 35,198,427
Fair Value Reserve for Equity Investment 1,142,742 1,305,258
Retained Earnings 846,400,371 542,663,729
Total 906,030,301 602,456,175

Note 3.11: Non-Controlling Interest

This represents portion of minority shareholders' interest 0.37% (previous year 26.37%) in the financial

statements of HI Soaltee Hotel Company Pvt. Ltd.

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Share Capital 50,000 3,563,600
Retained Earnings (3,374,563) 4,589,050
Total (3,324,563) 8,152,650

Note 3.12: Loans and Borrowings

Particulars 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Secured- Hire Purchase 9,170,921 1,124,779
Total 9,170,921 1,124,779
Current
Overdraft and Working Capital Loan 51,611,159 93,179,658
Current portion of Hire Purchase Loan 2,209,515 1,399,846
Total 53,820,674 94,579,504

Note 3.13: Employee Benefits

Particulars 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Gratuity 76,253,510 114,515,139
Less: Plan Assets (2,253,240) (6,174,356)
Net Gratuity Liability 74,000,270 108,340,783
Accumulated Leave 48,972,399 63,966,570
Total 122,972,669 172,307,353
Current
Salary and Wages Payable 11,250,076 9,881,025
Bonus Payable 31,517,125 -
Total 42,767,201 9,881,025




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED

As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.14: Income Tax Receivable/(Payable)

r

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 32.03.2079 31.03.2078
Advance Income Tax 34,544,399 28,047,374
Income Tax Liability (661,055) (141,353)
Total 33,883,344 27,906,021
Note 3.15: Trade and Other Payable
Particulars 32.03.2079 | 31.03.2078
Non-Current
Retention and Security Deposit 11,679,331 17,432,234
Unclaimed Dividend 10,514,616 11,376,471
Total 22,193,947 28,808,705
Current
Sundry Creditors 220,308,257 | 246,761,387
Other Payable
Advances Received 87,860,557 90,632,297
Civil Aviation Fee 394,695 484,061
Flight Kitchen Franchise Fee 6,487,466 1,834,241
Service Charge 54,648,520 18,495,028
Housing Fund 26,334,029 26,334,029
Corporate Social Responsibility 10,189,783 8,134,351
Other Liabilities 46,574,811 64,612,662
Total 452,798,118 457,288,056
Trade and other payable are non-interest bearing in nature.
Note 3.16: Revenue from Operation
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Room 246,990,610 57,427,873
Food 972,822,567 350,303,640
Beverage 70,835,073 10,458,605
Cigar and Cigarettes 658,625 40,180
Telephone 11,201 4,837
Laundry Income 1,229,505 1,977,242
Business Centre 13,725 -
Total 1,292,561,306 420,212,377
Note 3.17: Other Income
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Premises Rental Charge 25,993,604 1,411,117
Interest on Loans & Advances at Amortized Cost 1,765,522 1,474,942
Interest on Call Account/Time Deposit 1,851,973 2,041,118
Miscellaneous Receipts 6,253,092 2,704,113
Income from Service Charge 25,267,588 6,532,211
Dividend Income 1,222,517 -
Profit on Sale of Assets 3,110,365 518,509
Profit on Sale of Investment 9,170,962 -
Exchange Gain 2,124,666 -
Others 1,185,169 249,271
Government Grant towards Social Security Fund (SSF) - 4,483,750
Reversal of Incentive Management Fee - 7,835,582
Reversal of Provision for Leave 1,143,502 7,792,516
Unclaimed Balance Written Back 244,415 -
Total 79,333,375 35,043,129

imited
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.18: Consumption of Food and Beverage

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Food 241,240,023 121,164,519
Beverage 18,544,340 2,705,874
Cigarettes 407,685 20,582
Total 260,192,048 123,890,975

Note 3.19: Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Salary and Wages 159,441,674 90,066,478
Allowances 49,102,514 27,437,676
Overtime 1,709,000 196,050
Employees Meal 21,731,259 7,657,809
Soaltee Staff Welfare 2,496,617 3,100,862
Gratuity 10,188,080 7,339,553
Provident Fund 11,894,843 8,684,671
Clinic Expenses 2,025,427 1,437,148
Amortization of staff loan 1,188,456 206,009
Incentive Exit Scheme 32,099,623 67,857,602
Bonus 31,517,125 -
Total 323,394,618 213,983,858

Additional information on Gratuity is provided in Note 4.4.a.

Note 3.20: Operating Expenses

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Linen 5,740,121 6,195,138
Laundry Supplies 19,521,677 21,801
Crockery & Cutlery 2,422,010 1,203,511
Silverware 220,150 4,068,270
Cleaning Supplies 7,714,558 3,339,523
F & B Paper Supplies 10,311,020 6,456,701
Guest Supplies 12,919,885 4,415,274
Water & Water Treatment 16,115,702 6,438,017
Garden Maintenance 2,103,112 7,035
Pest Control 2,588,000 1,330,745
Waste Removal 823,100 304,000
Power and Fuel 91,558,812 47,796,067
Repair and Maintenance 24,713,592 13,318,504
Total 196,751,739 94,894,586




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.21: Other Expenses

r

Amount in Rs.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Rental Charges 7,277,087 2,533,105
Travelling 7,715,747 777,206
Transport and Conveyance 18,581,566 6,292,788
Audit Fee 651,700 651,700
Legal and Professional Fees 10,756,574 5,154,837
Directors' Meeting Fees 423,528 -
Licence & Taxes 19,715,693 18,832,228
Bank Charges 4,809,477 1,414,177
Annual General Meeting Expenses 662,555 528,665
Commissions 3,208,662 3,088,619
Insurance 7,985,808 9,148,448
Communication Expenses 4,352,726 3,883,425
Printing and Stationery 4,836,654 2,786,183
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 9,349,531 5,781,445
Marketing and Reservation Expenses 4,210,684 2,419,812
Training and Conference 1,900,800 1,986,300
Books and Newspaper 92,282 27,758
Membership & Subscription 2,175,432 988,770
Security Services 9,760,149 3,470,528
Uniform Expenses 6,274,728 1,470,925
Entertainment 785,959 306,302
Allowance for Impairment 5,000,000 5,000,000
Software Service Charges 5,536,344 7,529,464
Banquet Expenses 2,570,683 604,787
Kitchenette Expenses 4,314,205 1,878,942
Exchange Loss - 573,735
Corporate Social Responsibility 2,972,432 -
Miscellaneous 8,920,532 10,187,419
Total 154,841,538 97,317,568

Note 3.22: Earnings per Share

imited
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Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the total profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity
shareholders by weighted average number of equity shares for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. If the number of ordinary or potential ordinary shares outstanding increases as a result of a
capitalization, bonus issue or share split, or decreases as a result of a reverse share split, the calculation
of basic and diluted earnings per share for all periods presented is adjusted retrospectively.

Calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share has been done as stated above.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78

Basic Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year 299,216,357 (223,866,653)
Number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Basic Earnings per Share (Rs.) 3.55 (2.66)
Diluted Earnings per Share

Profit/(Loss) for the year 299,216,357 (223,866,653)
Weighted average number of shares 84,257,973 84,257,973
Diluted Earnings per share (Rs.) 3.55 (2.66)




imited

* *
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SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
As at 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 3.23: Financial Instruments Classification and Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments are classified in accordance with Note 2.2.3. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The Company has used its own data
(accounting value) and considered if there exist factors that would otherwise result in changes to the book
value of assets or liabilities. Such factors did not exist as per management evaluation and accordingly,
book value has been considered as fair value.

Amount in Rs.

As at 32.03.2079 | Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 308,619,008 308,619,008
Investment 27,500,000 27,500,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 36,778,270 36,778,270
Total At Amortized Cost 372,897,278 372,897,278
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 272,982,742 272,982,742
Total Financial Assets 645,880,020 - - 645,880,020
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 474,992,065 474,992,065
Loans and Borrowings 62,991,595 62,991,595
Total Financial Liabilities 537,983,660 - - 537,983,660
As at 31.03.2078 | Carrying Amount | Level 1 | Level 2 | Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Receivable 242,180,816 242,180,816
Investment 10,000,000 10,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 49,561,748 49,561,748
Total At Amortized Cost 301,742,564 301,742,564
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
Investment 273,145,258 273,145,258
Total Financial Assets 574,887,822 - - 574,887,822
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Trade and Other Payable 486,096,761 486,096,761
Loans and Borrowings 95,704,283 95,704,283
Total Financial Liabilities 581,801,044 - - 581,801,044




SOALTEE HOTEL LIMITED
For the period ended on 32 Ashad 2079 (16 July 2022)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Additional Information

Share Capital

The Group has single class of equity shares where shares of Soaltee Hotel Limited have face value of
Rs. 10 per share and subsidiaries have face value of Rs. 100 per share. Every member holding equity
shares therein shall have voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity

share capital.

Non-Controlling Interest
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. has made investment in two subsidiaries where holding in one is 100% and on
the other is 99.63% (previous year 73.63%). Upon consolidation of the financial statements, total
portion of financial statements is added by eliminating the portion of other shareholders by way of
non-controlling interest.
Reserves and Retained Earnings
a. Share premium
SHL had issued shares in premium on 1992-93. The amount collected by SHL in excess of its
face value is credited to this account. Use of share premium shall be as provided in Company
Act 2063.

b. Other Reserves

SHL had created other reserves out of capital profits on 1995. There is no movement on this
reserve since then.

c. Retained Earning

Net profit for each year is added to this reserve. Group uses this to provide dividend to its
shareholders.

d. Fair Value Reserve

This reserve is created to account for changes in fair value of investments for those investments
that are opted to be measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

e. Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve was created in 1986 when the land of SHL was revalued. For the first
time adoption of NFRS (1 Shrawan 2074), the revalued amount of land has been considered at
deemed cost which as allowed by NFRS 1 and accordingly, this reserve has remain intact.

Employee Benefits

a. Gratuity

Up to 19 Bhadra 2074, gratuity was in the form of defined benefit liability in which SHL was
required to pay gratuity to staff considering the number of years in service and the recent salary
of the staff. Changes in Labor law has changed the nature of gratuity and this is now a defined
contribution plan whereby SHL is required to provide 8.33% of monthly basic remuneration as
gratuity to employee with effect from 19 Bhadra 2074. SHL has enrolled itself and it’s employees
in Social Security Fund (SSF) in Chaitra 2076 and thereafter it has started making contribution
towards Employee Gratuity in the fund.

imited
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Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Opening Liability 114,515,139 319,639,442
Payment Made (38,261,629) | (203,256,821)
Expenses Booked 10,188,080 7,339,553
Deposited in SSF (10,188,080) (7,339,553)
Government Grant towards SSF for Gratuity - (1,867,482)
Closing Liability 76,253,510 114,515,139

Leave

Leave is classified as other long term employee liability. Liability is measured by way of actuarial
valuation for accumulated leave balance at the end of reporting periods. Changes in value of

liability is as follows:

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Opening Liability 63,966,570 120,361,383
Service Cost 9,058,131 20,230,280
Interest Cost 4,858,469 6,243,913
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) (15,060,102) (34,266,709)
Benefit Paid (13,850,669) (48,602,297)
Closing Liability (A) 48,972,399 63,966,570
Liability recognized in the financial statements (B) 48,972,399 63,966,570

Basic assumptions considered for measurement of leave liability related to leave are as

follows:
Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Discount Rate 8.50% 6.50%
Rate of Compensation Increase 6% 6%
Average Expected Future Service 13 14
Average Duration of Liabilities 10 12.5

Plan assets have not been created for funding of payment of leave liability.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% increase in discount rate considered for

calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Effect on:
- Service Cost (1,141,698) (2,465,544)
- Interest Cost 571,583 960,600
- Leave Liability (10,229,102) (13,610,076)

The following table demonstrates the impact of 1% decrease in discount rate considered for

calculating the present value of long term leave liability.

Particulars 2078-79 2077-78
Effect on:
- Service Cost 1,390,162 2,957,603
- Interest Cost (571,583) (960,600)
- Leave Liability 12,348,982 8,907,455
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4.5 Lease

SHL has entered into a lease arrangement of premises for a period of 2-3 years. The future minimum
lease rental payment to be made is as follows:

Period 2078-79 2077-78
Up to one year 7,487,713 7,265,833
One to five years 5,633,377 12,343,552
Total 13,121,090 19,609,385

SHL has entered into operating lease arrangement allowing to use some part of its assets on lease.
Minimum lease amount receivable under such lease is as follows:

Period 2078-79 2077-78
Up to one year 33,831,520 36,007,149
One to five years 255,970,344 228,502,545
Above five years 50,406,757 310,150,800
Total 340,208,621 574,660,494

The Board of Directors of SHL has decided to grant waiver for the lease payments of lessees
whose business was significantly and adversely affected by COVID-19 outbreak and subsequent
government-imposed lockdown.

4.6 Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year, SHL has provided Rs. 2.97 million (previous year Rs. NIL (1% of net profit after tax)
as Corporate Social Responsibility as per the Section 54 (1) of the Industrial Enterprises Act 2076.

4.7 Risk Management objectives and policies

The Group’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in foreign
currency exchange rates, liquidity and credit risk, which may adversely impact the fair value of its
financial instruments. The Board of each Group and senior management has overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management. The Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk
limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

i. Market Risk

In spite of having a very high potentiality of Tourism Sector and its related to services, it is
volatile to geopolitical and domestic incidents. With stabilization in the geopolitical and domestic
issues, the tourism sector looks for bright future. However, there is risk that any domestic/
international or geopolitical incidents would impact the business of the company. However, the
group through years of operations has sustained through such risks over the years in the past.

ii. Credit Risk

The Group (SHL, in particular) provides reasonable level of credit facilities to debtors and so does
it enjoy credit facility from it creditors as well. In impact on tourism sector may have impact of
company debtors’ ability to pay SHL within reasonable credit period allowed. Accordingly, there
exist the credit risks to that extent. The Group through its experience over the many years
has been managing such risk well through proper way of close monitoring and supervising the
regular recoverability position by the management and the Board.

iii. Liquidity Risk
The Group has very less amount of debt funding and will not be impacted significantly. Group
monitors its liquidity position on regular basis through effective planning and forecasting.

The Group’s current assets aggregate positively against the current liabilities and accordingly,
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the liquidity risk or risk that the company may not be able to settle its liabilities as they become,
due does not exist.

iv. Operational Risk

Group has been in operation since more than 53 years and have prepared and implemented
various Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) in the form of clear cut delegation of authority
for the activities, guidelines regulations etc. Beside the companies of Group is required to also
follow specific operating guidelines issued by its franchise. Group believes that the controls
implemented by the company have minimized the operational risk to acceptably low level. The
franchise also carries out Control Self-Assessment at reasonable interval where the SHL scored
high level marks placing it as one among better managed hotel among hotels being managed by
Franchise.

v. Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

SHL'’s revenue will be impacted coming from any fluctuation of exchange rate fluctuation so be
on the certain level of supplies of the company as such exchange rate fluctuation will contribute
certain level of inflations. Since its tariffs are quoted in USD, any rate fluctuation will have the
risk of impacting the income of the company. It has been the tendency that the exchange rate
fluctuation has generally been upward movement except of occasional down turn movement as
well. The Group has practiced not to hold foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities for
substantial period so as to minimize the risk of exchange rate fluctuation.

4.8 Related Party Transactions

Related parties of the Group comprises of key management personnel, organization having significant
influence and Board of Directors.

a. Significant Influence
Entities having significant influence over the Group is as follows:

i. Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. (SEPL)
Soaltee Enterprise Pvt. Ltd. is major shareholder of SHL. SEPL has four representatives in the
current Board of Soaltee Hotel Ltd. (SHL). SEPL has paid Rs. 66,667 (previous year Rs. 66,667)
to SHL as operating lease rent. SHL has paid Rs. 1,050,000 to SEPL as operating lease rent.
There is no outstanding balance at the year end.
Entity where the Group has significant influence is:

ii. Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd.
Soaltee Sibkrim Hotels and Resorts Pvt. Ltd. is associate of the Group. One of the subsidiary of
SHL, Soaltee Hospitality Ltd. has 24% shares in this company with investment of Rs. 261.84
million. There is no transaction or outstanding balance of this company with the Group.

b. Other related entities

i. Nepal Airlines Corporation (NAC)

Nepal Airlines Corporation is institutional shareholder of SHL. NAC has one representative in
the Board of SHL.

SHL provides flight catering services to the international flights of Nepal Airlines Corporation.
Transactions and outstanding balance with Nepal Airlines Corporation are as follows:

Revenue (in million) Receivable (in million)
Particulars
This Year Last Year This Year Last Year
Flight Catering Services 188.21 141.96 43.23 31.21
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ii. Sibkrim Holdings Pvt. Ltd.
There is no transaction of this company with SHL.
c. Those charged with Governance
Those charged with governance include the Board of Directors of each companies. As SHL is the

major shareholder of all subsidiaries, the Board of those companies is ultimately controlled by
Board of SHL. The composition of Board of SHL on the reporting date is as follows:

Name Position Representative of
Mr. Dinesh Bahadur Bista Executive Chairman Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ravi Bhakta Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Rajesh Kazi Shrestha Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mrs. Jaya Rajya Laxmi Shah Director Soaltee Enterprises Pvt. Ltd.
Mr. Ganesh Bahadur Chand Director (till 14 April 2022) Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Ubaraj Adhikari Director (from 15 April 2022) | Nepal Airlines Corporation
Mr. Prakash Bikram Khatri Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Sashi Raj Pandey Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Niranjan Kumar Tibrewala | Director Public Shareholder
Mr. Deepak Raj Joshi Director (from 14 December | Independent Director

2021)

Mr. Lil Bahadur Khatri serves as Company Secretary of the Company.

Board members are paid Rs. 15,000 (net of withholding tax) per meeting as meeting fee for
attending each meeting of Board. Meeting fee paid to members of Board for Board as well as
Other Committee meetings during the year amounts to Rs. 0.4 million (previous year Rs. NIL).

d. Key Management Personnel

The Groups’ key management personnel include are Executive Chairman & Vice President of
SHL and General Manager of The Soaltee Kathmandu.

Total compensation to key management personnel during the year is Rs. 16.48 million (previous
year Rs. 12.59 million). The compensation paid to Executive Chairman of SHL also includes the
performance incentive paid based on the profit of Hotel.

4.9 Unpaid Dividend

Total unpaid dividend of SHL amounted to Rs. 10.51 million (previous year Rs. 11.38 million).
4.10 Trade and Other Receivable
4.10.1 Civil Aviation Fee recoverable from Airlines

Civil Aviation Fees levied on Inflight catering services provided on international flights by SHL to
three different airlines have been disputed and not paid by the respective airlines which amounted
to Rs 7.051 million (previous year Rs. 7.051 million) is still pending recovery. This has been reflected
under Non-current Trade and other receivables.

4.10.2 Trade Receivable from Jet Airways

Trade receivable amounting to Rs. 16,061,418 is pending recoverable from Jet Airways as of the
reporting date which has closed its operation from 17 April 2019 and is undergoing its insolvency
proceedings. In October 2020, a revival takeover plan of potential investors has been approved by the
Committee of Creditors of Airlines. The company has already lodged the outstanding with Jet Airways
& confirmed by Jet Airways in their official website as eligible creditors. However, the outcome of the
proceeding and business revival is yet to be known.
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4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

Lien on company’s assets

Current and non-current assets of SHL, where applicable has been pledged hypothecated to bankers
providing the credit facilities. The credit facility as of the reporting date included term loan against a
vehicle only amounting to Rs. 62.99 million (previous year Rs. 94.57 million).

Contingent Liability

Group recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a
result of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate
reflection in the current financial year.

Bank Guarantee

Unexpired bank guarantee issued by Group amounted to Rs. 12.52 million (previous year Rs. 8.45
million)

Litigations or legal cases
i. Income tax Matters

Revenue Tribunal has decided in SHL’s favour against the appeal made relating to assessment
pertaining to FY 2068-69. However, Revenue Office has filed appeal in the Honourable Supreme
Court. Decision of such appeal is still pending. SHL is of the opinion that there would not be
significant obligation relating such appeal being considered at the Court.

ii. Assessment status

SHL has appealed to Revenue Tribunal challenging the disallowance of expenses on Self-
Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2071-72 and additional demand of tax Rs. 1,837,680
made by Large Taxpayers Office. The management considers no significant obligation that
would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim will be directly charged to
accumulated profit as per its practice.

SHL has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of expenses
on Self-Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2072-73 and additional demand of tax Rs.
2,413,333 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management considers
no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim
will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

SHL has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of expenses

on Self-Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2073-74 and additional demand of tax Rs.
134,155 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management considers
no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim
will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

SHL has appealed to Inland Revenue Department challenging the disallowance of expenses
on Self Assessment Income Tax Return of the FY 2074-75 and additional demand of tax Rs.
4,810,246 made by Large Taxpayers Office for administrative review. The management considers
no significant obligation that would arise that would be required to be provided for. Any tax claim
will be directly charged to accumulated profit as per its practice.

iii. Arbitration

SHL has filed a writ petition in the High Court Patan and has got court stay order on the issue of
outstanding receivable recovery pending settlement by then hotel manager, Holiday Inns China
Ltd. (Manager) through UNCITRAL regional office singapore for which the SHL objected and
filed a writ petition to High Court Patan against it. Similarly, the manager has filed a petition to
supreme court of Nepal to vacate the stay order. The case is under the sub-judice and pending
with the courts.
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4.16

4.17

4.18

v. Legal cases

SHL has filed a few cases for recovery of dues from some debtors in the course of its regular
business.

Capital Commitment

Capital contract of SHL remaining to be executed on capital accounts net of advances to Rs. 160.15
million (Previous year Rs. 18.07 million).

Letter of Credit

There is no outstanding letter of credit as at the reporting date.

Housing Fund

This fund was created as per the requirement of erstwhile Labour laws. Owing to changes in Labour
law, this fund is no longer required and no provision has been made. SHL has not paid during the
year out of this fund to a separate entity called Employee Housing.

Operating Segment

Management of the companies of the Group has considered the total operation to be segregable into
three operating segment based on the nature of operation and services rendered.

i. Core hotel business: The operation of hotel that includes sale of rooms, food, related recreational
facilities etc. that is directly linked to operation of hotel is considered as major segment.

ii. Flight catering: The Flight Catering Division provides flight catering services to airlines. This is
different nature to the core operating nature of the company, which is operation of hotel and related
facilities to meet its standards.

iii. Horizon Lounge: Horizon Lounge Unit provides airport lounge services to the travelers at
Tribhuwan International Airport (TIA).

The financial information about the identified segments are as follows: (Amount in millions)
Operating Segment Hote.l Flig}.lt Horizon Total
Operation | Catering | Lounge
Revenue
- Food 499.56 425.14 48.12 972.82
- Room 246.99 246.99
- Beverage 46.69 2.61 21.54 70.84
- Others 1.86 0.05 1.91
Interest Income 3.62 3.62
Other Income 75.72 75.72
Total Revenue 874.43 427.75 69.71 1,371.89
Expenses
Consumption cost 145.45 97.92 16.82 260.19
Employee Benefit Expenses 213.74 102.69 6.96 323.39
Management, Operating and Other Expenses 229.17 109.25 13.17 351.59
Depreciation and Amortization 89.78 4.25 6.33 100.36
Finance Cost 18.54 18.54
Total Expenses* 696.69 314.11 43.28 | 1,054.08
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4.19

4.20

Segment Result 177.75 113.64 26.43 317.82
Income Tax 18.60
Profit/(Loss) for the period 299.22
Segment Assets 2,253.10 169.56 43.14 | 2,465.80
Segment Liabilities** 2,465.80

*  Directly associated and identifiable segment cost has been reported on actual basis while
common segment costs are allocated based on ratio of segment revenue.

**  Segment wise liabilities have not been prepared due to absence internal reporting system of
segment liability.

Capital Management

Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group.
The Companies of the Group manage their capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern and to optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Group is based on
management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic
needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

The Group’s aim is to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital
management. The Group’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus
on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business. The Group’s focus is on keeping strong total equity base to
ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings,
if required, without impacting the risk profile of the Group. The Group will take appropriate steps in
order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return
on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Group’s goal is to continue to be able
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future periods.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during all the
years reported in this financial statement.

Regrouping and Round off

Figures have been regrouped and rearranged and rounded off to nearest rupee. Insignificant rounding
off differences may exist.
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